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Build on past achievements and forge ahead
into the future

Over the past 25 years, we have made unremitting efforts
in environmental protection. In future, we will uphold this
concept and continue to make greater contributions to
Environmental Protection, New Materials Development and
R&D on New Energies.
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On 1 July 1987, Jinan Chemical [ 3ktpy PTFE project commences the first fluorine silicon industrial park in
production, ending  PRC’s

low quality and small-scale

established in Zibo, Shandong production. Open a new page

Provinceinthe PRC. It was later of the development history of iailsaa
PRC's fluorine chemical industry B2yl

Plant Huantai Branch was

to become Dongyue Group
The Group was ranked 4th among the top

500 PRC most competitive enterprises
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Established import & As it started its in-house R&D, the Group partnered
fport company i with Tsinghua University and successfully
sell products to the | . £ : v fri |
global market developed a series of environmentally friendly
refrigerant products
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Phase | of 300ktpa organic silicone
project started production
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Dongyue’s chlor-alkali ionic membrane successfully

applied in a 10ktpy chlor-alkali production line. It began
the production and application of localized chlor-

alkali ionic membrane, which ended the monopoly of
importing foreign technology
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Board of the Hong Kong BRI

Stock Exchange opening a

Dongyue listed on the Main

The Group's self-developed environmentally friendly refrigerant DYR-3 passed the
new era in the growth of the
Group. Engine and successfully obtained an international serial number R439A. This
product also received “PRC Excellent R&D Patent Award”

standard of the American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning
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After 8 years of research and technology
development, Dongyue’s chlor-alkali ionic
membranes successfully commenced
production, marking a milestone in the
history of the chlor-alkali industry of the
PRC
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25th Anniversary of the Group
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The Group's perfluorinated chlor-alkali ionic membrane was
awarded the “State Technological Invention Award”

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @
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1. Continuous increase in sales and market share

In 2012, sales volumes of products under refrigerant business, polymer
business and organic silicone business showed a year-on-year growth
of 13.3%, 8.36% and 41.5% respectively. Refrigerant and PTFE products
occupied significant market share in both the domestic and foreign
markets. However, since the prices suffered a deep sink from the
previous year, the Group’s sales revenue declined to RMB7,050,822,000.
Profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company was
RMB713,056,000, and basic earnings per share were RMB0.34.

2. Application of new products, new technologies and new projects
propelling the Group’s innovative transformation and industrial
park upgrade
In 2012, the Group carried out a total of 19 projects in relation to the
technological revamp and comprehensive environmental protection,
which not only reduced material and electrical consumption but also
improved productivity and quality of our products. New construction
and expansion of projects in respect of gaseous silica, R125, PTFE and
tetrachloroethylene were completed to further expand production
capacity of our advantageous products. The Group developed 6 new
varieties, among which, the new product, DF series polymer, headed
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Chairman’s Statement

2012 is the 25th anniversary for establishment of Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman
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or “Dongyue”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”). The year was twisted with all kinds of
challenges and ordeals. Prices of fluorochemical raw materials and products rose continuously in
2011 but dropped sharply in 2012. The instability in the market, together with the bleak domestic
and overseas economic environment, resulted in the substantial fluctuation in the Group’s results.
Under such an unstable external environment, all dedicated members of Dongyue were connected
with one mind and therefore attained progresses in the following aspects:

towards high-end polymer market. Chloralkali ionic membrane was
used by more than ten chloralkali enterprises and exported overseas.
It is worth mentioning that, under the intensified market competition,
all officers and staff of the Group’s organic silicone business, with their
improved skills and at their best efforts, resolved 15 technical difficulties
(including dimethyl tower transformation, renovation of D3 refining
system and renovation of desulfurization/denitrification low vacuum
system), expanded production capacity of the 107 Silicone Rubber
and launched deep processing projects like hydrogen silicone oils and
gaseous silica, thereby reversing the substantial losses that continued
for years and realizing profits since September. Throughout 2012, the
Group's safety and environmental protection operated in a stable
manner, without any major safety accident or pollution in the plants.
Shandong Dongyue Organosilicon Material Co,, Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, was rewarded as a provincial-level advanced
unit for safety culture building.

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @
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3. Further perfection of industrial chain

During the year, Dongyue successfully acquired exploration rights
of two mines in Inner Mongolia of the PRC (namely fluorite, rare
earth and iron ore mine and nickel mine) through Inner Mongolia
Dongyue Fluorine Materials Co., Ltd. (“Dongyue Fluorine Materials”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. Dongyue Fluorine Materials
also obtained new mineral exploration licences for the two mines
issued by the relevant governmental authorities of Inner Mongolia.
Furthermore, in early 2013, the Group acquired 100% equity interests in
Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou New Materials Company Limited (“Huaxia
Shenzhou”) through Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co,, Ltd. (‘Dongyue
Polymers"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. Huaxia Shenzhou
is principally engaged in the business of production and sale of a variety
of downstream fluoropolymer fine chemicals including VDF, PVDF, FKM
and FEP. Viewed as “‘new materials” in the PRC, these fluoropolymer fine
chemicals have favourable characters which can be widely applied in
various aspects such as electrical and electronics, automotive and
painting industries. FEP is primarily used in wire's insulation layer and
thin walled tube of photovoltaic products and electronic products,
with a market share of more than 50%. PVDF is primarily used in
fluorocarbon coatings. FKM is primarily used in production of confined
pieces necessary for automobile and machinery manufacturing, with a
market share of approximately 20%.

Full supports from the government and continuous improvement
in brand awareness and social status

During the year under review, municipal government held business
conference at Dongyue for the third time to help resolve practical
problems in Dongyue’s development and create a better development
environment for the Company. | was elected as the Vice Chairman of
China Federation of Industry & Commerce. Dr. Zhang Yongming (8R5K
FRE D) of the Company was rewarded the Ho Leung Ho Lee Prize in
Advances in Science and Technology, and Mr. Liu Yandong, a member
of the Political Bureau of the CPC Central Committee and the State
Councilor, granted the prize to Dr. Zhang in person. The Ho Leung Ho
Lee Prize is known as the Chinese “Nobel Prize” in the world. The ionic
membrane technology won the “State Technological Invention Award".
Dongyue Polymers won the Governor Quality Award and was ranked
the first among the five award winners. Accreditation of such award
was not only a complete recognition of the Company’s production
safety, self innovation, quality improvement, environmental protection,
energy conservation, and management innovation but also an urge
and supervision on the Group's management.
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Chairman’s Statement

Looking into 2013, macroeconomic environment is still entangled with
many complications and uncertainties, global economic growth sees lots
of obstacles and, for fluorosilica industry, the coming year is another year
of difficulties and challenges. Under this backdrop, Dongyue will center
on the main line of innovative transformation and internal improvement,
leverage Dongyue’s advantages in research, innovation, brand and
scale, continuously adhere to the development direction of science and
technology, environmental protection and internationalization, operate
prudently and improve its competitiveness and profitability by adoption
of the following measures:

To focus on technology progress and product upgrade, improve
development quality and product competitiveness, and create a
“blue ocean” market for Dongyue

The Group will proactively explore the market of products for new uses
and with customized specifications and vigorously promote its new
products, such as modified dispersion resins and modified emulsions.
The Group will also upgrade facilities for projects in relation to Gross
Rubber and gaseous silica, with a view to enrich the variety of products
and increase their added value.

. To carry out new construction, reconstruction and expansion and

the construction of technological innovation, energy saving and
emission reduction projects

The Group will construct the production facilities of refrigerants such
as R125 and R32; polymers such as PTFE; and other products such as
tetrachloroethylene, hydroxyl silicone oils, 107 Silicone Rubber and
gaseous silica. The Group will also complete the construction works
of technological renovation, energy saving and emission reduction
projects to facilitate product consumption reduction revamp, tail gas
recovery, comprehensive utilization of by-products, and production
techniques optimization etc.

. To emphasize management reform, employee training and

introduction of senior professionals

The Group will consolidate its departments, downsize its staff and
merge its positions. In the meantime, it will propel a comprehensive
planning and budget control. The Group will also improve the quality
of its staff and provide them with prominent training, to create high-
quality, high-value and high-end products with its high-caliber staff.

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @
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4. To consistently emphasize cost control, improve operation
quality and create cost competitiveness and cost effectiveness
The Group will continue perfection and improvement on procurement,
energy saving, consumption reduction, cost saving, and labor saving,
optimize the cost control system, improve production efficiency and

reduce unnecessary wastes and expenditures.

5. To promote conversion of research results and complete project
research and development and patent application
The Group will do its best to promote marketing of its research results,
including chloralkali ionic membrane, hydroxy! silicone oils and ETFE
resins, to complete the research and development of its projects,
including the third generation chloralkali ionic membrane, fuel and
battery membrane, lithium battery membrane, vanadium battery
membrane, water treatment membrane and solar cell packaging
membrane, and to file application for such research and development
patents in time. The Group's state-level functional membrane research
and development center (including relevant real estate facilities) was
prepared for construction at the end of the year under review.

Dongyue will regard its 25th anniversary as a new start, adhere to the
industrial direction of new materials, new environmental protection
and new energies and capitalize on new opportunities, to attain greater
achievements amidst such an unstable international environment. I, on
behalf of our Board of Directors, express my gratitude from the depth of
my heart to our shareholders, investors and business partners for their trust
and support, and also the management and staff for their contribution to
the Group.

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 March 2013
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Financial review

Results highlights

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company and its subsidiaries
(togetherthe“Group”)recordedrevenueofapproximatelyRMB7,050,822,000,
representing a decrease of 30.64% over RMB10,165,200,000 of the last
year. The gross profit margin decreased to 23.88% (2011: 39.73%) and
the consolidated segment results margin* was 19.11% (2011: 33.61%). The
operating results margin was 16.88% (2011: 32.38%). Should the Certified
Emission Reduction (the “CER") segment and expenses on share options
granted to the employees and the Directors be excluded, the operating
results margin of the Group was 1745% (2011: 32.07%). During the year
under review, the Group recorded profit before tax of approximately
RMB1,054,572,000 (2011: RMB3,141,431,000), and net profit of approximately
RMB707,063,000 (2011: RMB2,260,881,000), while consolidated profit
attributable to the Company’s owners was approximately RMB713,056,000
(2011: RMB2,189,861,000). Basic earnings per share were RMB0.34 (2011:
RMB1.04). The board of Directors of the Company recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.130 (2011: HK$0.400) per share to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 23 May 2013.

*  Consolidated Segment Results + Revenue x 100%

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @
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DR R REEE Segment revenue and operating results

REBEZE2012F12A8318 EFE KRB E2011F Set out below is the comparison, by reportable and operating segments, of
DRAJNBILEFER2HIECEDE D ENWER  the Group's revenue and results for the year ended 31 December 2012 and

FEMLEEEINWT the year ended 31 December 2011:
BZ202F128310LFE BZE2011F12A31BILFE
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2012 31 December 2011
Wz i KEBAER Was RE KERNE
Operating Operating
Reportable and Results Results
EHRREE DI Operating Segments Revenue Results Margin Revenue Results Margin
ARBTT AR¥TR ARBTFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
VR B Refrigerants 3,671,321 296,270 8.07% 5,557,191 1,703,481 30.65%
=T HE Polymers 1,944,666 856,118 44.02%  3,183248  1,305819 41.02%
BHRE Organic silicone 1,351,278 (22,848) -1.69% 1,066,329 (75,667) -7.10%
CER CER 184,697 135,524 73.38% 319,557 250,706 78.45%
—E R - Dichloromethane,
BELE Polyvinyl Chloride

(TPvc)) K ("PVC") and Liquid Alkali 1,164,601 92,003 7.90% 1,518,927 191,887 12.63%
HAtb Others 557,988 (9,669) -1.73% 596,483 39,812 6.67%
8,874,551 1,347,398 15.18% 12,241,735 3,416,038 27.90%
B D EBEISHE Less: Inter-segment sales  (1,823,729) - - (2076,535) - -
RE Consolidated 7,050,822 1,347,398 19.11% 10,165,200 3,416,038 33.61%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Analysis of revenue and operating results

During the year under review, with the sluggish domestic and global
macro-economic development, which was initiated by the vulnerable
U.S. economic recovery process and the issue of European debt crisis, the
fluoro-chemical industry in China has been adversely affected. Under this
unfavorable situation, with its scalable vertically integrated value chain,
the Group continued to capitalize on its leading market position, strong
R&D capabilities and extensive sales network to expand its production
capacities, to upgrade its technology level, and to optimize its product mix.
As a result, during the current year under review, the Group experienced
an increase in the production and sales volumes of most of its products
in the refrigerants, polymers and organic silicone segments year-on-
year. However, the slowdown in economic growth has exceeded the
market expectation and the domestic as well as international demand in
the industry has declined significantly, leading to a significant fall in the
prices of the Group’s products. Although the raw material costs decreased
simultaneously, such decreases cannot be able to mitigate the negative
impacts arising from the decrease in selling prices of the Group's products,
resulting in the overall decrease in their profit margins.

Refrigerants

During the current year, the refrigerants segment remained to be the largest
revenue contributor to the Group's revenue, accounting for approximately
32.90% (excluding inter-segment sales). The revenue decreased by 33.94%
to RMB3,671,321,000 from RMB5,557,191,000 of the last year. This segment
includes the revenue from the manufacturing and sale of traditional
refrigerants products (mainly R22) and new green and environmental-
friendly refrigerants products (mainly R32, R125, R134a, R142b, R152a, R439a
and so forth). Being used as separate cooling agents, refrigerants products
can also be applied as the raw materials for the production of other types
of refrigerants and the fluoropolymers products (and its related high-end
downstream products).

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @
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The slowdowninthe China's property market, the home appliance products
end-market and the domestic automobile industry has all negatively
affected the domestic refrigerants market. Moreover, the depressed raw
materials prices (such as fluorspar, AHF and methane chloride), resulting
from the weak economic momentum and rapid increase in the capacities
in recent times, and the weakness in the domestic and worldwide economy
has intensified the fall in the selling prices of the Group’s refrigerants
products as compared to those of the last year. However, thanks to the
improved efficiency of the Group’s production and its leading market
position, the Group can be able to record growth in the sales volume of
traditional refrigerants and certain green refrigerants (such as R134a, R32,
R125, R142b and R152a) year- on-year.

Being the backbone refrigerants product of the Group with the largest
production capacity in the world (200,000 tonnes per annum), R22 is the
most widely used refrigerant in China and is generally used in household
appliances. Apart from that, it has been one of the key raw materials for
the production of the fluoropolymers and R125. R125 (21,000 tonnes
per annum) and R32 (27000 tonnes per annum) are the key mixing
ingredients for other types of green refrigerants (such as R410a and R439a
(independently developed by the Group)). During the current year, the
Group added an additional capacity of 8,000 tonnes of R125, which was
based on a more advanced production method (PCE method). This can
lay a solid foundation upon which the Group can achieve further cost
effectiveness.
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During the current year under review, notwithstanding the cooling down
of the domestic home appliances market, the Group can be able to
record an increase of sales volume of R22 year-on-year, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in export volume as a result of continuing
closing down of the relevant global capacity. Disapproval of new capacity
of R22 by the Chinese government pursuant to the Montreal Protocol and
its wide applicability also led to the moderate increase in the domestic
sales volume year-on-year.

Pursuant to the Montreal Protocol, R22 would be phased out as a
refrigerant and would be replaced by other green refrigerants. Currently,
R410a and R439a have been the two principal replacing refrigerants which
have been widely applied in inverter air conditioners and other green
home appliances. The cancellation of home appliance products subsidies
in 2011 and the sluggish domestic property market has led to a decrease in
the sales volume of R439a on a year-on-year basis. However, as the Group
commenced to manufacture R410a and sold a total of approximately 4,800
tonnes during the year, the negative impacts arising from the decrease in
the sales volume of R439a have been partly mitigated.

During the current year under review, as the Group recorded a substantial
fall in the average selling prices of all of its refrigerants products, the sales
revenue of this segment declined accordingly as compared to the last year.

The results of the refrigerants segment contributed 21.99% (2011: 49.87%)
of the total segment results of the Group, while its segment results margin
was 8.07%, compared with 30.65% of the last year. In 2012, there was
significant fall in the selling prices of the Group's refrigerants products.
Notwithstanding the fact that the raw materials (fluorspar, AHF, methane
chloride, sulfuric acid, methanol, industrial salt, etc) cost decreased
significantly, such decreases are not able to offset entirely the impact arising
from the decrease in the selling prices, leading to the overall decrease in
this segment results margin.

Polymers

In 2012, the revenue from the polymers segment decreased by 38.91%
to RMB1,944,666,000 from RMB3,183,248,000 of the last year. Polymers
segment is the second largest contributor to the revenue of the Group,
accounting approximately 27.58% of the consolidated revenue of the
Group during the current year. Polymers segment, together with organic
silicone segment of the Group, are regarded pursuant to the Twelfth Five-
Year Plan of the Chinese government as falling within the “New Material
Industry of China” with huge potential and business prospects.
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The segment mainly includes the revenue from the production and sales of
PTFE (a synthetic fluoropolymer with high level of resistance to temperature
changes, electrical insulation, and ageing and chemical resistant that is
used as a coating material and can also be further processed into high-end
fine chemicals which can be widely applied in the chemicals, construction,
electrical and electronics and automotive industries.) and HFP (a primary
raw material to produce fine fluorochemicals that are used in high-end fire
extinguishers, fluoro rubber and other high-end downstream products
such as FEP). Depending on the specific market requirements, PTFE is
produced and sold in the forms of suspension medium grain, suspension
fine powders, dispersion resins and concentrate liquid. R22 is the basic and
important raw material for TFE (a fluorocarbon), which is used by the Group
for the production of both PTFE and HFP. As at the end of 31 December
2012, the Group's total annual production capacities of TFE, PTFE and HFP
were approximately 50,000 tonnes, 37,000 tonnes and 10,000 tonnes,
respectively.

With the weaknesses of its end-application markets, which translate into
the cooling down of the growth momentum of domestic and international
demand forthe Group's products, coupled with the depressing raw material
cost (R22), this segment saw a decline in its revenue in 2012 resulting from
the decrease in the selling prices of the products. While the sales volume
of HFP remained strongly accelerated and those of the PTFE experienced a
slight increase on a year-on-year basis, this favourable situation was more
than mitigated by the decline in the selling prices of PTFE and HFP.

This segment contributed 63.54% (2011: 38.23%) to the total segment
results of the Group, while its segment results margin increased to 44.02%
from 41.02% of the last year. In 2012, as a result of significant fall in the raw
materials cost (R22), in respect of which the Group can be able to maintain
nearly 100% self-sufficiency ratio, the Group can be able to struggle against
the falling selling prices of PTFE and HFP and to record improvement in this
overall segment results margin.
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Organic silicone

Accounting for 19.10% (excluding inter-segment sales) of the consolidated
revenue of the Group for the current year under review, the revenue
coming from the organic silicone business segment increased by 26.72%
to RMB1,351,278,000 from RMB1,066,329,000. This segment mainly includes
the production and sales of DMC (upstream organic silicone intermediates
that are used as raw materials to produce deep proceeded silicone products,
such as silicone oils, silicone rubber and silicone resins), 107 Silicone Rubber
and Raw Vulcanizate (deep proceeded silicone downstream products).
Named as “Industrial MSG’, organic silicone is widely applied in military,
aviation, automotive, electronic, construction and other industries, mainly
in the form of additives, treatment chemicals stabilizers, lubricants and
sealants, and is a key ingredient in industrial processes. The Group initially
produce silicone monomers with silicone powder and chloromethane
and further process them to become silicone intermediates and deep
processed downstream products. As at 31 December 2012, the Group's
total production capacity for silicone monomers is 180,000 tonnes per
annum.

In 2012, the Group recorded a surge in the sales volume of this business
segment as compared to the last year, thanks to the increase in the average
production capacity for the current year as a result of the completion
of the second phase expansion project regarding 100,000 tonnes per
annum of organic silicone monomer and the associated technological
upgrading project in the middle of 2011. In addition, the introduction
of new downstream products, such as Gross Rubber and Gaseous Silica,
contributed to such increase. However, the positive impact had been
partly mitigated by the depressing selling prices of the Group’s products
in this segment. The issues surrounding the industry, such as over-capacity,
technology bottleneck has yet to be resolved during the current year.
However, in the second half of 2012, such issues have not been aggravated
and with the improved technology relating to this business segment and
the continuous improvement in the contribution from its downstream
products, the operating results of this business segment has therefore
been improved.

During the current year, the operating loss of this segment narrowed to
RMB22,848,000 from RMB75,667,000 of the last year, which translated to
segment results margin of -1.69% (2011: -7.10%).

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @



BIEE W ENIT

Management Discussion and Analysis

ZERR - PVCR R

A HEERAEERLB D HHOMAEESER
ZE R R gE) kA S B RPVCE MM AEE &
THE B

RAFE - o EBROREEAREE0NFNEE
Wz 491576% (FIB D EEHEE) AEFHAR
#£1,518,927,0007T T P#£23.33% 2 AR#E1,164,601,000
7T|:Q

EmALEEFERKE Y —BERE
m o ARG EHRMETE - &)
BEFEANMENEZRAERQEREZ AL
WS Fhk - AEBEREERERHBEA S
EF%T o REEEEEPVC (—RBEZIERANESE
TEABRREREMNRENESY)  HFES
7%123% Me o FEMLBEMFEEE —E(LEY
(&ba) - WL HAEEPVCEERRMEL o Filt - AR
KB4 EPVCREBREEMRIZUE - WM B4
BRHBXEMEENCEEE -

RADBEFE  AREARERITEMISEX
TiZAT RN AR - BEMISH KR o PVC - £
B —_EFRERNEEREEREFRGEE
T - DUbD P E W TR o

RAFE - AT  SLERBETEMISRR
BEZ201MFNRANBLEFENDEEFARE
191,887,0007CLL 8 - 1t 5 EBERX 1548 & i K A R
92,003,0007T ° FAMPVCEK KRR MAIEAE « K
SER2012F 1T AREFAEPVCEMR ' 1B5782013
FIAMELE -

) 016 BEZLETRCIEE BELES

Dichloromethane, PVC and Liquid Alkali

This segment includes the revenue from the production and sale of the
Group’s two main side products of the Group's refrigerants segment
(dichloromethane and liquid alkali) and the Group’s PVC products.

During the current year, accounting for approximately 15.76% (excluding
inter-segment sale) of the Group’s consolidated revenue in 2012, the
revenue for this segment decreased by 23.33% to RMB1,164,601,000 from
RMB1,518,927,000 of the last year.

Liquid alkali is a basic chemical for the production of the Group’s methane
chloride, and used in the textile, power and materials industries. Methane
chloride includes dichloromethane, which is mainly used to manufacture
antibiotics and as a foaming mode for polyurethane. Dichloromethane is
not required to be used for the Group’s production processes. The Group
engaged in the production of PVC (a widely used thermoplastic polymer
applied in the construction industry to replace traditional building
materials) with an annual capacity of 120,000 tonnes. The production of
refrigerants products generates a chemical, hydrogen chloride, which is
one of the basic raw material for PVC production. Therefore, the Group's
PVC production can ensure production synergies and increasing economic
value generated from a self-sufficient business chain.

During the current year under review, as a result of depressing domestic
construction and industrial markets, the market outlook is uncertain,
resulting in the insufficient market demand. Both the sale volumes and the
selling prices of PVC, liquid alkali and dichloromethane products decreased
significantly as compared to the same period last year, which led to a drop
in the sales revenue of this segment.

During the current year, as a result of market downturn in the chemical,
manufacturing and construction industries, this segment recorded an
operational profit of RMB92,003,000, compared with segment profits of
RMB191,887,000 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011. As a result
of disappointing performance of PVC business, the Group temporarily
ceased the production of PVC products starting from November 2012 but
resumed production in January 2013.



CER
RABBEE  AEAEBER0NFE - F=
N EMNZEZ A K2012F 8 — R EZFFERHAHFC23
B ARELELEBARREZ(CERALD
RS $£4912,691,562 (20114F : 16,155,086)
MECFREEf - SR AKEEBFLRSEAARKE
184,697,0007T (20114F = A [ #319,557,0007T) #Y
CERYZZES ° HAACEREEMIFERUMNTIIZ M EERIE T
P& o BRCERMIURER B0 R D « RAFEE - A%
B K &[5> CEREE i (& 7] LA R B AT 43 € W) B CEREE
765ETTHREEBLEE - WRZBEAS %
FIRELFZFR)7845% NpEZE73.38% ©

DR HERX

FRN - DHEMEERIAEFHARY211,849,000
TLRBA091%E AR #209,912,0007T °

ITHRAX

TN TSR EF A R590,984,0007T
13787% % AR E367,203,0007C ° & BB
THMEASY CFreER TES B TERERS)
BAFTE o MR MABE RS - F AT
BB X B AR #224,156,0007T (20114 : AR
474,224,0007C) + AME T#52.73% ©

& KA
TR BEKANEREFHARE150,277,0007T R

i 00.45% % A R #136,076,0007T © LI EEHM
REBHFHEERDFTE

EIRE S DM
Management Discussion and Analysis

CER

During the current year under review, the Group sold a total of
approximately 12,691,562 (2011: 16,155,086) tonnes of CER units and a total
amount of RMB184,697,000 (2011: RMB319,557,000) was recorded by the
Group as the CER revenue in respect of the Group's reduction in HFC23
emission for 2011 second, third and fourth quarters and 2012 first and
second quarters, which have been confirmed and endorsed by United
Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change. As the selling price
of CER units in European market dropped significantly, the CER revenue
decreased accordingly as compared to the year of 2011. During the current
year, majority of the Group’s CER units can only be able to be sold at the
minimum price of US$6.5 per each CER unit as stipulated by the Chinese
government. This factor accounted for the fall in this segment results
margin to 73.38%, compared with 78.45% of the last year,

Distribution and selling expenses

During the year, the distribution and selling expenses merely decreased by
0.91% to RMB209,912,000 from RMB211,849,000 of the last year.

Administrative expenses

During the year, the administrative expenses decreased by 37.87% to
RMB367,203,000 from RMB590,984,000 of the last year. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the payroll expenses (excluding
the expenses on share options granted to the Directors and the
employees). Should the relevant expenses on share options be excluded,
the administrative expenses during the year was RMB224,156,000 (2011:
RMB474,224,000), representing a substantial decrease of 52.73%.

Finance costs

During the vyear, the finance costs merely decreased by 9.45% to
RMB136,076,000 from RMB150,277,000 of the last year. This was mainly due
to the decrease in the average borrowings of the Group.
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Capital expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group's capital expenditure
was approximately RMB791,901,000 (year ended 31 December 2011
RMB1,246,411,000), which was mainly used in the acquisition of the
exploration rights of two mines and fixed assets including equipment and
facilities for the Group’s expansion projects in (1) the 10,000 tonnes per
annum of R134a (which was later converted to 8,000 tonnes per annum of
R125); (2) the 7,000 tonnes per annum of PTFE; (3) the 3,000 tonnes per year
of gaseous silica, (4) the 10,000 tonnes per annum of TFE, (5) the second
phase expansion of the 5000 tonnes per annum of PTFE and (6) various
expansion in capacities of other high-end downstream organic silicone
products. The expansion projects in respect of R134a, the 7,000 tonnes of
PTFE and gaseous silica have been completed during the current year.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s financial position is sound with healthy working capital
management and strong operating cash flow. As at 31 December 2012,
the Group'’s total equity amounted to RMB5,226,858,000, representing
an increase of 2.99% compared with that as at 31 December 2011. As
at 31 December 2012, the Group’s bank balances and cash totaled
RMB1,682,728,000 (31 December 2011: RMB1,509,280,000). During the year
under review, the Group generated a total of RMB2,075,326,000 (for the year
ended 31 December 2011: RMB2,933,763,000) cash inflow from its operating
activities. The current ratio” of the Group as at 31 December 2012 was 1.80
(31 December 2011: 1.70).

Taking the above figures into account, together with available balance
of bank balances and cash, the unutilized banking credit facilities and its
support from its bankers as well as its strong operational cash flows, the
management is confident that the Group will have adequate resources
to settle any debts and to finance its daily operational and capital
expenditures.
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Capital structure

There has been no change in the share capital of the Company during the
year under review. As at 1 January and 31 December 2012, the number of
issued shares of the Company was 2,120,552,455.

As at 31 December 2012, the borrowings of the Group totaled
RMB1,912,098,000 (31 December 2011: RMB2,271,086,000). The gearing
ratio? of the Group was 4.20% (31 December 2011: 13.05%).

The Group had no particular seasonal pattern of borrowing. As at 31
December 2012, the Group's borrowings comprised non-current portion
(over 1 year) and current portion (within 1 year). The non-current portion
of borrowings amounted to approximately RMB1,137,796,000, which are
wholly repayable after one year but not exceeding five years. The current
portion of borrowings amounted to approximately RMB774,302,000. The
Group's borrowings were made at fixed interest rates and floating rates.
The weighted average effective interest rates on floating rate borrowings
and fixed rate borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2012 were
6.65% (2011: 5.94%) and 6.53% (2011: 6.50%) per annum, respectively. As
at 31 December 2012, 12.20% (31 December 2011: 4.62%) of the Group's
borrowings bear fixed interest rates.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group's borrowings were denominated in
RMB and US dollars, amounting to approximately RMB1,770,674,000 and
approximately US$22,550,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB141,424,000)

respectively.

Group structure

During the current year under review, Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co.
Ltd. ("Dongyue Chemicals"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
established Huantai Dongyue International Trade Company Ltd. (‘Dongyue
Trade”). Dongyue Trade, in which Dongyue Chemicals owned 100%
interests, is a company established in China whose main business is to
engage in import and export activities on behalf of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no change in the structure of the
Group.
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As stated in the Company’s announcement dated 18 March 2012, Inner
Mongolia Dongyue Fluorine Materials Co. Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into agreements to acquire exploration right of
a nickel mine and an iron and fluorspar mine at a total consideration of
RMB80 million. Please refer to the relevant announcement for the details.
During the year, the acquisition has been completed.

On 25 January 2013, Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co. Ltd. (“Dongyue
Polymers”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement pursuant to which Dongyue Polymers agreed to purchase the
entire equity capital in Shandong Huaxia Shenzhen New Materials Company
Limited. Please refer to the relevant announcement of the Company for the
details. On 21 February 2013, the acquisition was completed.

Notes:
M Current Ratio = Current Assets + Current Liabilities
) Gearing Ratio = Net Debt + Total Capital
Net Debt = Total Borrowings — Bank Balances and Cash

Total Capital = Net Debt + Total Equity

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had certain property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayments with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately RMB751,261,000 (31 December 2011: RMB1,609,215,000), and
bank deposits of RMB20,570,000 (31 December 2011: RMB4,340,000), which
were pledged to secure the Group's borrowings and the bills payables of
the Group.
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Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and related
hedges

The Group's functional currency is RMB with most of the transactions
settled in RMB. However, foreign currencies (mainly the United States
dollar) were received/paid when the Group earned revenue from overseas
customers and when settling purchases of machinery and equipment
from the overseas suppliers.

The Group enters into forward contracts for managing certain risks arising
from foreign currency transactions. In order to reduce the risk of holding
foreign currencies, the Group normally converts the foreign currencies into
RMB upon receipt while taking into account its foreign currencies payment
schedule in the near future.

Employees and emolument policy

The Group employed 5,887 employees in total as at 31 December 2012 (31
December 2011: 5,495). The Group implemented its remuneration policy,
bonus and share option schemes based on the performance of the Group
and its employees. The Group provided benefits such as medical insurance
and pensions to ensure competitiveness.

In addition, the Group had also adopted a share option scheme as a long
term incentive to the Directors and eligible employees. The emolument
policy for the Directors and senior management of the Group is set up
by the Company’s Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group's
performance, individual performance and comparable market conditions.
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Directors

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is responsible for the
management and operation of the Company’s businesses and has the
general authority in this regard. Certain information of the members of the
Board is as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong, aged 53, was appointed as the chairman, chief
executive officer and executive director of the Company in July 2006.
He has been with the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) and its predecessors since October 1986 and has over 25 years of
experience in the chemical industry. He is also the chairman of Dongyue
Chemicals, Dongyue Polymers and Dongyue Organic Silicone, and a
director of Dongyue F&S, Dongying Dongyue Salt and Dongyue Precision
Chemicals, all of which are the Company’s subsidiaries. Mr. Zhang is a
senior officer of political affairs with a postgraduate degree in economics.
He had served the People’s Liberation Army Navy from 1978 to 1982.
He has obtained the honorary titles of National Youth Spark Leader and
Model, Powerful Figure of China Petroleum and Chemical Industry (First
Session), Top 10 Outstanding Figures of Chinese Brands in the International
Market, the Shandong Labour Model, Top 10 News Figures of Shandong
Province in 2006, Outstanding Private Entrepreneur Award for Outstanding
Contribution in Petroleum and Chemicals in China of the Eleventh Five-Year
and the most outstanding CEO of the Year chosen by a Hong Kong
magazine “BZAA & Capital CEQ". Mr. Zhang has been the vice standing
member of China Association of Organic Fluorine and Silicone Material
Industry (FEISEEA AR TE R ). In December 2012, Mr. Zhang was
elected the vice chairman of the China Federation of Industry & Commerce
EEIEXHES).
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Mr. FU Kwan, aged 56, was appointed as the executive director of the
Company in July 2006. He has been with the Group and its predecessors
since December 1996 and is formerly a director of Dongyue Chemicals,
Dongyue Polymers, Dongyue Organic Silicone and Dongyue F&S. Mr. Fu
is the chairman of the board of directors and the president of Macro-Link
Group Limited and is a director of Macro-Link Sdn. Bhd.. Through his
various investments in a variety of businesses, Mr. Fu has over 25 years of
experience in corporate management and business strategy planning.
Mr. Fu was the deputy director of the Economic Committee of Liling City,
Hunan Province, head of the Foreign Trade Bureau of Liling City, Hunan
Province, deputy general manager of Hunan Arts & Crafts Import & Export
Corporation and the vice chairman of the China Federation of Industry &
Commerce, and is a committee member of the Chinese People Political &
Consultative Conference and the chairman of Chamber of Commerce of
Beijing and Hunan Enterprises (AL FUMFE 3R E). Mr. Fu has also been
awarded the “Top 10 Outstanding Entrepreneurs in China Certificate” in
2003 by the China Professional Managers Association, “Top 10 Excellent
Leaders of Chinese Private Enterprises Certificate” in 2003 by 21st Century
Economic News Association, and was defined as “Outstanding Builder for
Socialism Task with Chinese Characteristics” (FEIF @S EHRFHEEFH
#£5%8) by the nation. Mr. Fu is a non-executive director of Wang-Zheng
Sdn. Bhd. and the chairman of the board of directors of Macro-Link
Property Joint Stock Company Limited (FTEEEETBIERMDERAR),
companies listed on the Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, respectively. Mr. Fu owns a 45% interest in Macro-Link
Sdn. Bhd., which wholly owns Macro-Link International Investment Co.,
Ltd. ("Macro-Link International”). Macro-Link International is a substantial
shareholder of JLF Investment Company Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE").

Mr. LIU Chuangqji, aged 63, was appointed as the executive director of the
Company in July 2006. He has been with the Group and its predecessors
since October 1986. Mr. Liu has over 25 years of experience in the chemical
industry and is a director of Dongyue Chemicals, Dongyue Polymers,
Dongyue F&S, Dongyue Organic Silicone, Dongying Dongyue Salt and
Dongyue Precision Chemicals and was a director of Zibo Dongyue Lvyuan,
all of which are the Company’s subsidiaries. He is also formerly the general
manager of Dongyue Chemicals and currently the president of the Group.
He is a senior officer of political affairs, and was awarded “Medal for
Enhancing the Labour Force of Zibo City” in 2002 by the Zibo City Labour
Union.
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Mr. CUl Tongzheng, aged 51, was appointed as the executive director, vice
president and chief financial officer of the Company in July 2006. He has
been with the Group and its predecessors since November 1988. Mr. Cui
has over 20 years of experience in the chemical industry and is a director
of Dongyue Chemicals, Dongyue Polymers and Dongyue F&S. Mr. Cui is
also the vice president of the Group and is formerly the deputy general
manager of Dongyue Chemicals. Mr. Cui holds a bachelor degree from
China Statistics Cadre College as well as a MBA diploma from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University.

Mr. YAN Jianhua, aged 57, was appointed as the executive director of the
Company in April 2010 and has been with the Group since January 2004.
Mr. Yan is primarily responsible for the internal auditing of the Group and
has over 30 years of experience in corporate management and financial
auditing. Mr. Yan is currently a director of Dongyue Chemicals, Dongyue
Organic Silicone, Dongyue F&S and Dongying Dongyue Salt and formerly
a director of Dongyue Peak and Dongyue Polymers, all of which are the
Company subsidiaries. Mr. Yan obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics
from Zhongnan University of Economics in 1986 and obtained the AACTP
Chief Finance Officer Certification accredited by The American Association
for the Certification of Training Program through Tsinghua University in
2006. He has been a qualified senior accountant recognized by the Hunan
Provincial People’'s Government since 2000. Mr. Yan joined the Group as
the financial controller of Dongyue F&S in January 2004. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Yan held the positions of financial manager, head of
auditing department, chief accountant and financial controller in various
corporations.

Mr. ZHANG Jian, aged 40, was appointed as the executive director of the
Company in July 2006 and has been with the Group since February 2006.
Mr. Zhang has more than 10 years of experience in the investment banking
and corporate finance. Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor degree in Economics
and Law from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics and a Master
degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is also an executive director of JLF Investment Company Limited
and Macro-Link Property Joint Stock Company Limited (BB NEhE I
AR ARE).
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Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA (PRACTISING), ACA, CTA
(HK), FHKIoD, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. Ting is a certified public
accountant and has been the managing partner of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan
& Chan, Certified Public Accountants (Practising) since 1987. Mr. Ting is a
member of the 9th, 10th and 11th Chinese People Political Consultative
Conference, Fujian Province. Mr. Ting is currently a non-executive director
of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited and an independent
non-executive director of six companies listed on the HKSE, namely Tong
Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited, Tongda Group Holdings Limited,
JLF Investment Company Limited, Computer and Technologies Holdings
Limited, Texhong Textile Group Limited and China SCE Property Holdings
Limited. Mr. Ting was an independent non-executive director of Minmetals
Resources Limited until 30 November 2011. Save for the aforesaid, Mr. Ting
does not have any other directorships in listed companies during the past
3 years.

Mr. LIU Yi, aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company in November 2007 and has been with the
Group since then. Mr. Liu had previously worked in the Chinese Research
Academy of Environmental Sciences as a department head and in the
State Environment Protection Administration as a standing member
where he retired in January 2006. He has many years of experience in
handling environmental protection issues. Mr. Liu does not have any other
directorships in listed companies.

Mr. YUE Run Dong, aged 73, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in November 2007 and has been
with the Group since then. Mr. Yue has more than 40 years of experience in
the chemical industry. He was the technical officer of research department
of Shen Yang Chemical Research Institute, the dean of Chen Guang
Chemical Research Institute and the dean of Chengdu Silicone Research
Centre. Recently, he has taken the post of the manager of the technology
department of China National Bluestar Group and the dean as well as the
chairman of Bluestar Institute of Chemical Technology. Mr Yue is also the
honorary standing chairman of China Association of Organic Fluorine and
Silicone Material Industry (P EIEEB MR TSR E). Mr. Yue is currently
an independent director of Chengdu Guibao Science and Technology
Co, Ltd, (REBREERHEIRHBIRAF), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprises Board of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @



EENSEEREABRE

Directors'and Senior Management's Profile

SEEEAER

BREBEE 5758  NEBEREE - B1988F3H
BIBRAES BELE T2RRERE-
BH1989F 48 E2004F3 A BT EEHEEE R
HE B AARRIR o 1% R20044E3 A 200693 A E (T
HEETIHEBLIE - B2006F3AF 5 « HEE
AEEMRLRE -

EREEE 455 AR BERBEAHAE
MR B BT o SR A N988F 11 B IIAARSE
E ZHEREERD THALIET R ETREL
THEIREE - RERASEIBEERERD T
MES - HEBETHRIER  ZSHREEY
“EERLEARRENE  WHRERSET
BHEE NS RSIET 2 88 o

FHERFLE 4955 B199%6FIARES + (LB
NAEE aERITEENRER - FEEEER
EAMIEBEIERESRREREAESE © 2005
F o ER [REL TEHELEIEMES ] BT
20065F + MR [ 2B Em T A L TEE | MR
FhRERBRREANEELEM -

o

BRIE o4 - 4755 BE LB BREMBATE XX
B B1988F3AMMIHAER - EHITRE(T
HAERKENREFREEEE - HRERELTE
4EIE o

AT KA c 4957 0 E2003F 10 A REB A ASE
B 2RAREELE2RRERDPEERER
K URRESS FEBEIBLIE - 52009924
BESEETRES D FHRLE -

=

) 026 BEZLETRCIEE SELES

Senior management

Mr. ZHOU Guangsheng, aged 57, is the deputy president of the Group.
He has been serving the Group since March 1988 and is responsible for
production, safety and environmental protection. He served as a deputy
head of production plant and deputy production general manager from
April 1989 to March 2004. He served as the deputy general manager of
Dongyue Chemicals from March 2004 to March 2006. He has been serving
as the vice president of the Group since March 2006 until now.

Mr. ZHANG Heng, aged 45, is an engineer and had obtained an
undergraduate degree in economics from the China Petroleum University.
He has been serving the Group since November 1988 and is formerly the
general manager of Dongyue Polymers and the deputy general manager
of Dongyue Chemicals. Mr. Zhang is currently the vice president of the
Group and a director of Dongyue Polymers. He has pioneered several
research projects which had twice been awarded the Shandong Science
and Technology Spark Award, and had several times been awarded the
Zibo City Science and Technology Improvement Award and the Zibo City
Spark Award.

Mr. WANG Weidong, aged 49, has worked for the Group since September
1996 and is responsible for technical matters and projects. He is currently
the general manager and a director of Dongyue Organic Silicone, and the
chairman of Dongyue F&S. In 2005, he was awarded the title of Outstanding
Scientific Researcher of National Chemical Industry and in 2006, he
obtained the award for “Outstanding Worker of National Chlor-alkali
Industry”. Mr. Wang holds a bachelor degree in Chinese Literature.

Mr. PANG Feng, aged 47, had obtained a MBA diploma from Shanghai
Jiao Tong University. He has been serving the Group since March 1988
and is formerly the deputy production manager and the deputy general
manager of Dongyue Chemicals. He is currently the general manager of
Dongyue Chemicals.

Mr. ZENG Hongzhi, aged 49, has been serving the Group since October
2003 and is formerly a chief officer of the Group’s safety and environment
protection department and the Group's corporate administration
department, as well as the deputy general manager of Dongyue Polymers.
He has been serving as the general manager of Dongyue Polymers since
February 2009 until now.
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Company secretary

Mr. NG Kwok Choi, aged 41, is a full time company secretary of the
Company.He joined the Group on 3 July 2009. Mr.Ng is primarily responsible
for the overall financial reporting and company secretarial matters of the
Company. Mr. Ng has over 18 years of experience in the fields of finance,
auditing and accounting. Prior to joining the Group, he had been the group
financial controller of two companies listed on the Main Board of the HKSE
from July 2000 to September 2008, and had worked for more than five
years in an international accounting firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Ng graduated
from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology majoring
in Accounting in 1994. Mr. Ng is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @



+
.l.

Al

S

Report of the Directors

BEERNREREEEERAR ([AAF]) &
BB AR (5l [ AEE]) &#ZE20126128318
IFEZEEERE MEEZUBHRE -

ETBEXK
ARAMHEBEFRLEER - HEAANEE
BB RN 37 - £ AEEEEE
BME T REERL -

RER DK
A ERF Pi  EHN B0E iR & 2 ERA
W -

BETEZRMNEZ2012F6A308 1E/5E A Bt
HARR B, (B Z=20115F6 A30B IENER « M) o

ERWEZAN2013F5 9230 B AR FRESE
it ((RERAM]) MRS 2012FERPRES
BR0.1307 T ([ REARE D (KHEERERARKE
0.1067T) (20114 © BAR04008 T * YIHESHER
ARM03247T) - REARR B AR E#§72013F5 A
0BRITZEERFBAFARE ([REAFAE))
EARRBRRRZHAE ©

) 02s BEZLETRCIEE SELES

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 60.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of an interim dividend for
the six months ended 30 June 2012 (six months ended 30 June 2011: Nil).

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.130
per share (the “Final Dividend”) (approximately equivalent to RMBO0.106 per
share) (2011: HK$0.400 per share, approximately equivalent to RMB0.324 per
share), in respect of the year 2012, to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company (the “Register”) on 23 May
2013. The Final Dividend is subject to the approval of the members of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the "AGM") to be
held on 20 May 2013.
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Closure of the Register

The Register will be closed to ascertain the qualification for attending and
voting at the AGM and for the entitlement to the Final Dividend.

The Register will be closed from 15 May 2013 to 20 May 2013, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for attending and voting at the AGM, all share transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the
Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen'’s Road
East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 14 May 2013.

The Register will be closed from 24 May to 28 May 2013, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for the entitlement to the Final Dividend, all share transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with Tricor
Investor Services Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen'’s Road
East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 23 May 2013.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of change in equity on page 63.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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Share capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out
in note 29 to the financial statements.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders as computed in accordance with the Companies Law (2003
Revision) of the Cayman Islands amounted to RMB1,435,110,000, of which
HK$275,672,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB225,513,000) has been
proposed as the Final Dividend.

Pre-emptive right

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2012.
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Share options

Share option scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme approved by a written resolution of
all shareholders of the Company on 16 November 2007 (the “Scheme”),
the Company may grant to, among others, the Directors of the Company
and employees of the Group, for the recognition of their contribution of
the Group, options to subscribe for the Shares. According to the Scheme,
the board of Directors (the “Board”) may, at its discretion, invite any eligible
participants to take up options to subscribe for Shares of the Company,
which when aggregated with any other share option scheme, shall not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. The total number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed
10% of the number of Shares inissue as at the date on which dealings in the
Shares first commence on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"HKSE") unless further shareholders” approval had been obtained pursuant
to the conditions set out in the Scheme. The total number of Shares inissue
and to be issued upon exercise of all option under the Scheme and any
other schemes (including both exercised or outstanding options) to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company.

The offer for the grant of options (the “Offer”) must be taken up within 28
days from the date of Offer, with a payment of HK$1.00 as consideration.
The exercise price of the share option will be determined at the highest
of (i) the average closing prices of Shares as stated in the HKSE's daily
quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the Offer; (ii) the closing price of Shares as stated in the HKSE's daily
quotations sheet on the date of the Offer; and (jii) the nominal value of the
Shares. The total number of Shares which may fall to be issued under the
Scheme and any other scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed 208,000,000
which represents 10% of the total issued share capital as at the Listing Date
unless further shareholders’ approval is obtained. The share options are
exercisable at any time during a period of not more than 10 years from the
date of grant, subject to the terms and conditions of the Scheme and any
conditions of grant as may be stipulated by the Board. Unless terminated
by the Company by resolution in general meeting, the Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from 16 November 2007.

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @
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As at 31 December 2012, particulars of the options granted to certain

Directors and employees of the Group under the Scheme are set out below:

EREHA
Number of options
K202 #2012
1A18 RER RER 128318 g fiyid
3 P 1% R AT iEE RHLAH Bt #R
Balance Outstanding
Name or asat Lapsed  Exercised asat
S8HE Category of 1 January during during  31December Exercise Exercisable Exercisable
BEHER  participant 2012 theyear theyear 2012 Price  Date of Grant from until
Bro ()
HKS  (Note)
HTES: Executive Directors:
REELL  Mr.Zhang Jianhong
FH Tranche 1 3,325,000 - - 3,325,000 813 2011E6A1H 2012%6A18 2016F6A1R
1 June 2011 1June 2012 1 June 2016
FH Tranche 2 3,325,000 - - 3,325,000 813 2011E6A1H 20136718 W16E6A1H
1 June 2011 1June 2013 1June 2016
E=H Tranche 3 3,325,000 - - 3,325,000 813 2011E6A1H 014F6A1H 2016F6A1R
1June 2011 1June 2014 1 June 2016
Fit Tranche 4 3,325,000 - - 3,325,000 813 2011E6A1H 015%671H W016E6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2015 1June 2016
ZEFLE  MrLiuChuang
F-Ht Tranche | 3375000 - - 3,375,000 813 2011E6A1H 2012%6A18 016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2012 1June 2016
EH Tranche 2 3,375,000 - - 3,375,000 813 2011E6A1H 2013%6A1H Wi65E6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2013 1June 2016
F=H Tranche 3 3,375,000 - - 3,375,000 813 2011E6A1H W014F6A18 016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2014 1June 2016
Ft Tranche 4 3,375,000 - - 3,375,000 813 2011E6A1H 015%6A1H Wi65E6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2015 1June 2016
ERBEE  MrCuiTongzheng
1 Tranche | 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000 813 2011E6A1H 2012%6A18 01656718
1 June 2011 1 June 2012 1June 2016
E£4 Tranche 2 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000 813 2011E6A1H 013%6A1H 2016F6A1R
1June 2011 1June 2013 1 June 2016
F=Ht Tranche 3 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000 813 2011E6A1H 014%F671H 01656718
1 June 2011 1June 2014 1June 2016
Euikig Tranche 4 1,250,000 - - 1,250,000 813 2011E6A1H 015F6A1H 2016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1June 2015 1 June 2016

) 032 BEZLETCIES SELES
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EREZA
Number of options
R20125 R20125
1418 RER  RER 128318 T8 s
] K% (i e RATHE e RHAH il &R
Balance Outstanding
Name or asat Lapsed  Exercised asat
S8HE Category of 1 January during during  31December Exercise Exercisable Exercisable
HESER participant 2012 theyear  theyear 2012 Price  Date of Grant from until
B (D)
HKS  (Note)
EEAA M YanJianhua
1 Tranche 1 500000 - - 500000 813 2011%6A1R 2012F6A18 2016F6A18
1 June 2011 1 June 2012 1June 2016
£H Tranche 2 500,000 - - 500,000 813 2011F6A1H 013F6A1H 2016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1June 2013 1June 2016
=i Tranche 3 500,000 - - 500000 813 2011E6A1H 014%F6718 201686718
1 June 2011 1June 2014 1June 2016
FMmit Tranche 4 500,000 - - 500000 813 2011F6A1H 015%6A1H 2016F671H
1 June 2011 1 June 2015 1June 2016
RELE Mr. Zhang Jian
F-Ht Tranche 1 50,000 - - 50,000 813 2011E6A1H 012%6A18 01656718
1 June 2011 1 June 2012 1June 2016
i Tranche 2 50,000 - - 50,000 813 2011F6A1H 013%F6A1H 2016F6718
1 June 2011 1June 2013 1June 2016
E=H Tranche 3 50,000 - - 50,000 813 2011E6A1H 014%F671H 016F6A71H
1 June 2011 1 June 2014 1June 2016
Fi Tranche 4 50,000 - - 50,000 813 20114%6A1R 2015F6A 18 2016F6A18
1June 2011 1June 2015 1 June 2016
E&: Employees:
At Inaggregate
F—Ht Tranche 1 28450000 (550,000) - 27,900,000 813 2011F6A1H 012%6A1H 2016F6A71H
1June 2011 1June 2012 1 June 2016
£2H Tranche 2 28450000 (550,000) - 27,900,000 813 2011F6A1H 2013F6A1H 2016F6A18
1June 2011 1June 2013 1 June 2016
F=H Tranche 3 28450000 (550,000) - 27,900,000 813 2011%6A1R 2014F6A18 2016F6A 18
1 June 2011 1 June 2014 1June 2016
FMHt Tranche 4 28450000 (550,000) - 27,900,000 813 2011F6A1H 2015F6A1H 2016F6A1H
1 June 2011 1 June 2015 1June 2016
147800000 (2,200,000) - 145,600,000

s - BERE A AR K ERSSE78ET

Note:

Share.
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The fair value of the share options granted under the Scheme were
determined and measured using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model
on 1 June 2011. The significant inputs into the model were the exercise
price shown above, volatility of 64.65%, dividend yield of 3.68%, an
expected option life of 3.5 to 5 years and on annual interest-free interest
rates of 1.00%, 1.18%, 1.34% and 1.49%. As any changes in subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimates, in the opinion of
professional appraiser, the valuation model for the share options granted
does not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of
the share options.

The related accounting policy for the fair value of the share options are set
out in note 3 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no option had been granted or agreed to be
granted to any person under the Scheme since its adoption.

Directors

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2012 and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Liu Chuangqi (President)

Mr. Cui Tongzheng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Yan Jianhua

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs")

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Liu Yi
Mr. Yue Run Dong

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association, at each of
the annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being,
or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to
but not less than one- third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every 3 years. Mr. Zhang Jianhong, Mr. Liu Chuangi and Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen will retire by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
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Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors proposal for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has entered or has proposed to enter into any
service contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its fellow subsidiaries,
its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in which a Director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Director’s rights to acquire shares

Otherthan as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options” in this report,
at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, their respective spouse or minor children to acquire
benefit by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 22 to 27.

Remuneration of the Directors

The remuneration of each Director is determined with reference to the
duties, responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of the
Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 11 to the
financial statements.

Corporate governance practice

Details of the corporate governance practice of the Company are set out
on pages 44 to 57.
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AERBEESEBNBEATHNAQRRER
BEE (E&RFBHMEEERD ([#F5 R
EiEpI]) ExvER) G - BB, RER#E
BHREBIRIEES KBS R EXVEE R
Fep EAME AR | KB AT R R 2 %k
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BEEHR BEME

Name of Director

Nature of interest

Disclosure of interests

(a)

Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions of the
Directorsand the chief executive of the Company and their respective
associates in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model
Code") to be notified to the Company and the HKSE were as follows:

%43 KA RS
ROEE

Number of Shares or
underlying Shares

HE 8T
BRAB 7L
% of issued

share capital

SRIERTE
Mr. Zhang Jianhong

BELE

Mr. Fu Kwan

AEHRE
Mr. Liu Chuangi

ERREE
Mr. Cui Tongzheng

BEELs

Mr. Yan Jianhua

SRIESEE
Mr. Zhang Jian

) 03 BEZL TGS SELES

Sl
Corporate interest!”

B A dAE Ny

Bl
Beneficial interest

RO
Corporate interest®

EEEERY
Corporate interest®
Eafam

Beneficial interest

MR
Corporate interest®
BEaER

Beneficial interest

s s
BmiEm

Beneficial interest

EaniEms
Beneficial interest

166,551,273 (L) 7.85 (L)
20,447,636 (L) 0.96 (L)
609,646,818 (L) 2875 (L)
87,360,000 (L) 412 (L)
19,853,454 (L) 0.94 (L)
156,852,363 (L) 740 (L)
10,162,180 (L) 048 (L)
2,487,091 (L) 0.12 (L)
597,091 (L) 003 (L)
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Notes:

(1) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in Dongyue
Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the 166,551,273
Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

2) These Shares are directly held by Macro-Link International Investment Co., Ltd.
("Macrolink International”) which in turn is wholly owned by Macro-Link Sdn.
Bhd., a company in which Mr. Fu Kwan owns a 45% interest.

(3) These Shares are directly held by Dongyue Wealth Limited which is wholly
owned by Mr. Liu Chuangi. Mr. Liu is deemed to be interested in the 87,360,000
Shares(L) held by Dongyue Wealth Limited under the SFO.

4) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Cui Tongzheng holds 100% interest in Dongyue
Initiator Limited, Mr. Cuiis deemed to be interested in the 156,852,363 Shares(L)
held by Dongyue Initiator Limited.

S

L: Long Position

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company or their respective associates had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the HKSE.
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HEBITIAE) RAA BIH D sk AEREAX
DA RN IR E S R E 1505336
EBFFEMNELMATREZ SIS
BIEXVER 2 R 835 BB AR AN A B B K4
WEKEA

BRREME BEME

Name of Shareholder

Nature of interest

Substantial shareholders’ and other

interests and short positions

person’s
in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures

As at 31 December 2012, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (not being
a Director or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or a
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO or which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

I 13 =X AE BA
o8 E

Number of shares or

LB BT
BABSL
% of issued

underlying Shares share capital

FEER B RR
Macrolink International

BRI ERSEEAR AT
Macro-Link Sdn. Bhd.

Dongyue Team Limited
Dongyue Team Limited

Dongyue Initiator Limited
Dongyue Initiator Limited

BRE -

B
Beneficial interest”

STl
Corporate interest™

N2

BaifEm?

Beneficial interest?

=R 4343
EmEm®

Beneficial interest®

(1) ZEBRMBHEBBEREERNA  HEBEERER
H 8 5 5t AR HE B 4590 M 2 M 5 SR PE SR ¥ B SR [
BRARGES -

@) BEZEFLAERN AR RBEZEERE
Dongyue Team Limited#) 2 ## s + #9R 5t AR
YE#E 5 Dongyue Team Limited T 5 166,551,273%
&7 (LB RS o

3) BEFEFLBEGRY BRERBREERSE
Dongyue Initiator Limited#] & p 4 %+ # & %&
A % 48 {E # B Dongyue Initiator Limitedf 3% &
156,852,363AX A2 (L) Ay HE RS

@ L: iF&

) 033 BEZLETOCIEE SELES

609,646,818 (L) 2875 ()
609,646,818 (L) 28.75(L)
166,551,273 (L) 7.85 (L)
156,852,363 (L) 740 (L)

Notes:

m These Shares are directly held by Macrolink International which in turn is
owned by Macro-Link Sdn. Bhd., a company in which Mr. Fu Kwan owns a 45%
interest.

2) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Zhang Jianhong holds 100% interest in Dongyue
Team Limited, Mr. Zhang is deemed to be interested in the 166,551,273
Shares(L) held by Dongyue Team Limited.

(3) Pursuant to the SFO, as Mr. Cui Tongzheng holds 100% interest in Dongyue
Initiator Limited, Mr. Cuiis deemed to be interested in the 156,852,363 Shares(L)
held by Dongyue Initiator Limited.

) L: Long Position
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(c) Interests in other members of the Group as at 31

ERQTMNER December 2012
EEREKNB LR
BRITRE
AARMELRERE ZHBRARANEERR EmEtE AMEXREDL
% of issued share
capital/registered
Name of the Name of substantial shareholder  Nature of capital of such
Company’s subsidiary of such subsidiary interest subsidiary
IR REREM AR AR IRE @I RAMIRE AR A A] NG| 16.78%
(IRERED
Shandong Dongyue Fluo-Silicon Shandong Hi Tech Investment Corporate
Materials Co., Ltd. ("Dongyue F&S") Co., Ltd.
HERERRERAA IIRESHRMIREFR AR
Zibo Dongyue Lvyuan Co., Ltd. Shandong Hi Tech Investment
Co,, Ltd.
NEERETERICTHRAF TR IBMERR AR NG 49%
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine Chifeng Peak Copper Co., Ltd. Corporate
Chemicals Co,, Ltd.
TREEFBERR A A TR IBINERR AR NG| 20%
Chifeng HuaSheng Mining Co,, Ltd. Chifeng Peak Copper Co., Ltd. Corporate
REREHEEXERAR] MEBEXREARAA NG| 40%
(IREREEXD)
Dongying Dongyue Salt Co., Ltd. Macro-Link Asset Investment Corporate
("Dongying Dongyue Salt”) Co., Ltd.
REREHEMETARDA EMEXERERR AR
Dongying Dongyue Precision Chemicals Macro-Link Asset Investment
Co,, Ltd. Co,, Ltd?
R E SO B F R A A IR EE SO TAR AR NG 49%
Shandong Dongyue Wen He Fluorine Shandong Lai Wu Wen He Corporate

Chemicals Co,, Ltd.

Chemicals Co,, Ltd.

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @
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Notes:

(1) Shandong Hi Tech Investment Co., Ltd. is a 16.78% equity holder in Dongyue
F&S which, in turn, owns 100% of Zibo Dongyue Lvyuan Co., Ltd.. Consequently,
Shandong Hi Tech Investment Co., Ltd. indirectly owns more than 10% of Zibo
Dongyue Lvyuan Co., Ltd.

2) Macro-Link Asset Investment Co., Ltd. is a 40% equity holder in Dongying
Dongyue Salt which, in turn, owns 75% of Dongying Dongyue Precision
Chemicals Co, Ltd, with the remaining 25% owned by the Company.
Consequently, Macro-Link Asset Investment Co. Ltd. indirectly owns more than
10% of Dongying Dongyue Precision Chemicals Co., Ltd.

Saved as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2012, no other person (other
than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company) had any interest
or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all at general meetings of any other member of
the Group.

Directors’ interests in competing business

During the year ended 31 December 2012, none of the Directors of the
Company was interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or
existed during the year.
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Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
- the largest supplier 5.82%
— five largest suppliers combined 14.96%
Sales
- the largest customer 2.07%
— five largest customers combined 7.64%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Connected transactions

During the year, the Group had not entered into connected transactions
that are subject to be reported pursuant to Rule 14A45 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE (the “Listing Rules”).

Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2012 not falling under Rule 14A.33 of
the Listing Rules are set out below:

02 WIHERER S FE LR BEREH
Continuing connected transactions for the year 2012 Annual Cap Actual
(AR®BEE8T) (AREBE&8T)

(RMB million) (RMB million)

ML EEEYE (FIEREHE Framework agreement for the 87 28

BEXEARAR) KB TXE
MZRERE ([RERE
Btk ) (MHAE)

purchase of industrial salt from
Dongying Dongyue Salt (previously
named Dongying Macrolink Salt Co,, Ltd.)

(the "DDS Agreement”) (Note)
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Note: The purpose of the DDS Agreement is for the purpose of the Group's production of
liquid alkali. Dongying Dongyue Salt is a connected person by virtue of it being an
associate of one of the Company’s executive Directors, Mr. Fu Kwan and an associate
of the Company’s controlling shareholder, Macrolink International. On 31 December
2010, Dongyue F&S entered into the DDS Agreement with Dongying Dongyue Salt
for three years to 31 December 2013 for purchase of industrial salt by the Group from
Dongying Dongyue Salt. Details of the DDS Agreement are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 31 December 2010.

The purchase price for the industrial salt payable by the Group shall be paid by means
of cheque or remittance with one month credit term and on normal commercial terms
which will be determined after arm’s length negotiation between the parties with
reference to the then prevailing market price of industrial salt that is no less favourable
than that offered to independent third parties. There is no provision in the DDS
Agreement requiring the Group to exclusively source industrial salt from Dongying
Dongyue Salt.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by
the INEDs. The INEDs confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected
transaction were entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board engaged the auditors of the Company in respect of the aforesaid
continuing connected transactions. The auditors have reported to the
Board in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float of the issued shares of the
Company as required under the Listing Rules.

Events after the reporting date

Details of the events after the reporting period are set out in note 39 to the
financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire as auditors of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2013
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The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Dongyue Group Limited (the
“Company”) recognizes their mission of creating values and maximizing
returns to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), while at
the same time fulfilling their corporate responsibilities. To this end, we strive
to promote and uphold the highest standard of corporate governance.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE") has promulgated
the Hong Kong Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
which came into effect for listed issuers’ first financial year commencing
on or after 1 January 2005. During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
HKSE has made revision to the Code (the "Revised Code”) which becomes
effective from 1 April 2012. The Board has completed the review of the
Revised Code. In order to continue to maintain high standard of corporate
governance, the Board ensures that, taking into account the prevailing
standards adopted by the Company and its own circumstances, the
Company can comply with the requirements as stipulated under the
Revised Code, by making the necessary disclosure, modification to the
various procedures and documentation.

The Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the
Company with the adoption and improvement of the various procedures
and documentation which are detailed in this report. To the best
knowledge and belief of the Directors, the Company has adopted and
complied with the code provisions of the Code and the Revised Code
during the year ended 31 December 2012 and up to the date of this report,
except for deviations regarding the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer and the attendance of the Company’s annual general meeting
("AGM") on 18 May 2012, the details of which have been disclosed in the
relevant paragraphs below in this report.
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The Board

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”), and oversees the Group’s businesses,
strategic direction and performance. The Board delegates the authority
and responsibility to the Group’s management for the management of the
Group. In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities
to the Board’s Committees. The composition of the Board is reviewed
regularly to ensure that it has a good balance of expertise, skills and
experience which can meet the requirements of the business of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2012 and up to the date of this
report, there was no change in the structure of the Board, which currently
comprises nine Directors and its composition is set out as follows:

Executive directors (“EDs"):

Mr. Zhang Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fu Kwan

Mr. Liu Chuangi (President)

Mr. Cui Tongzheng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Yan Jianhua

Mr. Zhang Jian

Independent non-executive directors (“INEDs"):

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. Liu Yi
Mr. Yue Run Dong

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors’
and Senior Management's Profile” section on pages 22 to 27 of this annual
report.

The Company has three INEDs representing one-third of the Board. At least
one of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise pursuant to Rule 3.10 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE (the "Listing Rules”).
The Board has received from each INED an annual confirmation of his
independence and considers that all the INEDs are independent under the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @
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The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review and
approve the Group's annual and interim results, as well as corporate
governance, financial, capital and remuneration matters. During the year
under review, five Board meetings and an AGM were held. Apart from
the AGM, no other general meetings were held by the Company. The
attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and the AGM is set out

as follows:
i BT HERR
EEgERAE BEREER
Number of

Board meetings Attendance of

attended/held the AGM
BITES EDs:
RIBRITE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 5/5 N
HELE Mr. Fu Kwan 0/5%
RETRE Mr. Liu Chuangi 4/5
BRI STAE Mr. Cui Tongzheng 5/5 V
BRI AE Mr. Yan Jianhua 5/5
REBSEAE Mr. Zhang Jian 5/5 V
BYFHITES: INEDs:
TRESAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 5/5 \
EllE e Mr. Liu Yi 5/5
ERmREE Mr. Yue Run Dong 5/5 \
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Mr. Fu appointed certain individuals to attend the Board meetings on his behalf.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board has dealt with matters
covering mainly the Group's overall strategy, annual and interim results,
internal control, dividend policies, corporate governance, capital, financial
and remuneration matters. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
operations of the Group to the senior management under the supervision
of the Board. In addition, on 11 December 2012, the Chairman and all the
INEDs met without the presence of other EDs to exchange views on matters
concerning the business development, management and corporate
governance of the Group.
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Board meetings are scheduled to be held at approximately quarterly
intervals and as required by business needs. At least 14 days' notice of
regular Board meetings (or reasonable notice for all other meetings) is
normally given to all Directors who are given an opportunity to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. The Company Secretary assists
the Chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and the
accompanying Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at least 3
days before the intended date of a Board meeting. All minutes are kept by
the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director.

In facilitating the Directors to discharge their responsibilities as stipulated
under the Listing Rules, starting from April 2012, the Directors have been
provided with monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail and with appropriate insurance cover to protect them from
potential risks arising from legal actions against them while they discharge
their duties.

Directors’ continuous professional development

The Directors are briefed on the amendments to or updates on the
relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Directors are provided
with written materials to develop and refresh their professional skills. On
20 March 2013, the Company organized for the Directors an in-house
workshop (the "Workshop”) on the Listing Rules.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the Directors
received the following training on continuous professional development
during the year and up to the date of this report:

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @
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BITES EDs:
SRR E Mr. Zhang Jianhong N N
HEEE Mr. Fu Kwan N
EFRE Mr. Liu Chuangi Ny
ERBEE Mr. Cui Tongzheng J Vv
BORZESE Mr. Yan Jianhua N
RIS A Mr. Zhang Jian N N
BYFHTES: INEDs:
TREBRAE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen N N
BlfELE Mr. Liu Yi N N
ERfREE Mr. Yue Rundong Ny N
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Directors’ responsibilities in corporate governance

The Directors recognize the importance and their responsibilities for
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. In this accord, during
the year under review, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and the Company's compliance with
the Code and the Revised Code and the relevant disclosure in this report.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed they have complied
with the required standard set out in the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors adopted by the Company.
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Roles of chairman and chief executive officer

Code A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Mr. Zhang Jianhong is both the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes that vesting the roles
of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same position provides
the Group with stronger and more consistent leadership and allows for
more effective planning. Further, the Board considers that this structure
will not impair the balance of power, which has been closely monitored
by the Board, which comprises experienced and high caliber individuals.
The Board has full confidence in Mr. Zhang and believes that the current
arrangement is beneficial to the business prospect of the Group.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which would
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters including the
appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the Company. The
Board considers that the new Director(s) is expected to have expertise in
relevant area to make contribution to the Company and to have sufficient
time to participate in the decision making process of the Company.

The EDs of the Company did not enter into service contracts with the
Company. However, each of the INEDs signed a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of approximately two years commencing from 1
January 2012.

Pursuant to the Company'’s articles of association (the “Articles”), one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or if the number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation at each AGM in accordance with the provisions of
the Articles. Accordingly, all Directors shall be subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at AGM under the Articles.

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @



EREAFHRERE

Report on Corporate Governance Practices

EXZET

ESEORUFHEZES  BERREERRERR
g YHITABEARERE AIRARER
BRXAWHERN) £RE88 REZEEHRIN
M EFHRBIIIFATESEE - RE— TR
B RRESUHRAZEELIIERTESFTA
B o

YMEES

FMEREMARTIMEBBIIFNTERTR %
WITES  2RIRZIELELE (REGXRE) TR
BRAERRERTEEAK - FHEZESNEER
REEATEERIAKERHE2BESTRASE
ERAEREEZHFMERRLERE  HEZBIT
EERAEESRERENFHH  SEREEAD
A BERER SN AREREE MATESRLE
et ARMBIFRTEECHFMAESSEF
R

HE20NFNANBIEFE  HFNEZEE 8T —
NG SLEBHBIBERNOT

Board committees

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee
and a Nomination Committee, each of which has its specific written terms
of reference, which have been available on the Company’s and the HKSE's
websites, and is chaired by INEDs (except the Nomination Committee). To
further enhance independence, all the committees include a majority of
INEDs.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises the Company’s two INEDs and
one ED, namely, Mr. Liu Yi (being the Chairman of the Committee), Mr.
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Zhang Jianhong. The written terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee cover, among other things,
the review of the Group's policy and structure for the remuneration for
all the Directors and senior management of the Group, the approval of
the remuneration for all the EDs and senior management of the Group,
including the granting of share options to the Group’s employees and the
EDs under the Company's Share Option Scheme, and the recommendation
to the Board for the remuneration for the INEDs.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, a meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

HE BT
EZEEEERH™
Number of
Committee meeting

attended/held
EZEERE Committee member:
BESEAE Mr. Liu Vi 11
TRIBEA Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 11
SRR E Mr. Zhang Jianhong 11

SEMETHE20MEN2ANB M BEENH
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During the meeting, the remuneration of the EDs and the Group’s senior
management for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 was approved.
In addition, the members discussed and reviewed the remuneration
for the Directors and the Group's senior management and the Group’s
remuneration related matters, as well as reviewed and approved the
revised terms of reference.
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The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out below:

AE

Number of persons

2,000,0017T22,500,0007T
3,000,0017T%:3,500,0007T
4,000,0017T%4,500,0007T

B EARBIM 6B THBEMNEBES T
A &S EHIE 8 AE — PrEBH R TREH
F11 8120

BREEE

ENEZEEHARA=ZLBIUIFRITES Dl
RTREXRE (ZBEEXF BABAEEXER
KB RV BEEERBERNH)  BIERERE
RS AR

BRZEENIZREAENARRFREKAE
RYFEHRERER Ut MEFSRHEES
RER BRI ENRERERINEZEEDA
EEgiRftESEARILESNER BN S &
BiER - ERZBeTAERHNASENM K
W2 e ARPELIEBIE - LUt IR e o

HENFNLANBILEFE  BEZEESLET
ZREE SKENHEERIT

2,000,001 to 2,500,000 1
3,000,001 to 3,500,000 3
4,000,001 to 4,500,000 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to
the Listing Rules are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the financial statements.

Audit committee

The Audit Committee comprises the Company'’s three INEDs, namely, Mr.
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen (being the Chairman of the Committee with
appropriate professional qualification or accounting or related financial
management expertise), Mr. Liu Yi and Mr. Yue Run Dong.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company's
annualreportsandaccounts, half-yearly reportsand accountsandto provide
advice and comments thereon to the Board, to make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors. The Audit Committee is also responsible for reviewing
the financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group
and to give suggestions in these regards.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
December 2012 and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:

HEE AT
ZESEERY™
Number of
Committee meeting

attended/held
EFEEBRE: Committee member:
TREBEA Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 3/3
2Bkt Mr. Liu Yi 3/3
ERREE Mr. Yue Run Dong 3/3
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The external auditors of the Company and the related management of the
Group also attended these meetings.

During the meetings held in the financial year ended 31 December 2012,
the Audit Committee has performed the works which are set out as follows:

perform pre-audit meeting in respect of the financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011;

discuss and review auditing, internal controls, risk management
and financial reporting matters including the review of the annual/
interim reports, accounts and the related results announcements,
before recommending them to the Board for approval;

review and approve the revised terms of reference;

approve the remuneration for the audit services provided by the
external auditors and its relevant terms of engagement in respect of
the financial year ended 31 December 2011; and

review the external audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the Listing Rules and statutory
compliance in relation to the financial reporting.

In addition, on 4 January 2013, the Audit Committee conducted pre-audit
meeting with the external auditors in respect of the audit of the financial
statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2012,
The Audit Committee also met with the management on 20 March 2013
to review the accounting standards and practices adopted by the Group
and to discuss matters regarding internal control and financial reporting
including the review of the Group’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2012 before proposing to the Board for approval.

Nomination committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference on 18 March 2012 to be responsible for the appointment of new
Director(s) of the Company and other related matters. Mr. Zhang Jianhong
was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee and Mr.
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen and Mr. Liu Yi were appointed as the members
of the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee is to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, to identify individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board and to assess the
independence of the INEDs.
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On 20 March 2013, a meeting of Nomination Committee was held. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

ERLUEBR
Attendance of
the meeting

ZEERE Committee member:
RELRTE Mr. Zhang Jianhong N
TRIBEA Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen N
2R x4t Mr. Liu i N
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HBERHE BEEDAVERAEEER - N
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During the meeting, the members discussed matters relating to the
composition of the Board and make recommendation thereon to the
Board for consideration, made recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of a new ED to fill the vacancy of the resigning ED as well as
reviewed the independence of the INEDs.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and
external auditors

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the Group's results and cash flows. The external auditors are responsible
to form an independent opinion, based on the audit, on the financial
statements prepared by the Directors and report the opinion solely to the
members of the Company as a body and for no other purpose.

Internal control

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining the soundness
and effectiveness of the internal control system and risk management
procedures of the Group, including setting a management structure
and its terms of reference to ensure efficient and effective use of the
Group's resources to assist the Group in achieving its operation objectives,
safeguarding the Group's assets against any unauthorized use or disposal
and ensuring an appropriate maintenance of according records and the
availability of reliable financial information for internal use or external
release.

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @
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The Audit Committee assisted the Board in discharging its responsibilities
for maintaining an effective system of internal controls on the Group's
business operations. The Audit Committee completed the annual review
of the Group's internal control evaluations in respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2012 through a professional accounting firm, which
mainly covered certain of the Group's operations and followed up the
Group's major control weaknesses in respect of the previous year. No major
issues but areas of improvement have been identified. All recommendations
from the professional accounting firm will be properly followed up to
ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable period to time.

External auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the total remuneration for the audit
services provided by the external auditors amounted to approximately
RMB1,377,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the total remuneration for the
permissible non-audit services provided by the external auditors amounted
to approximately RMB919,000, analyzed into (1) RMB409,000 for the review
of the interim financial report of the Group, (2) RMB160,000 for the review
of the internal control evaluations and (3) RMB350,000 for the provision of
financial due diligence services to the Group.

The re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the
Company has been recommended by the Audit Committee and endorsed
by the Board and is subject to approval by the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Shareholders’ rights

Proceduresforthe Shareholderstoconveneextraordinary
general meetings (“EGM")

Pursuant to the Articles, one or more registered Shareholders holding
not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company (the
EGM Requisitionists”) carrying right of voting at the general meetings
can deposit a written requisition to convene an EGM to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the registered office, which is presently situated
at Scotia Centre, 4th Floor, PO. Box 2804, George Town, Grand Cayman,
Cayman Islands, or its office in Hong Kong, which is presently situated at
Unit 02, 15/F, AXA Centre, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
EGM Requisitionists must state in their requisition the businesses of the
EGM to be transacted and such requisition must be signed by all the EGM
Requisitionists.



ERRRFIASERA LN ERKERES
% RANEBLHEESARBERFIARE -
YREMBHEBEEERASELBRRART
DEE - REERMAA - KRB ARERNE
2EREMEARNEH - HEFEREZZRR
“t—QNBEAREBFEBRRENIAS - BREH

GERALTAUNRAESTRERAE - MERE
MARGBRALTHEEGREARAGMELDN
AR EAXEHARARRBEREIANEZRA
TEHER -

BRRRRRAGLRZXBRNER

ARBRRBFRSIBRFHAG LIRERS
BORANEEBAIR R ZFIRE - ERFAA
B AREBFBEHFELITE ISR L ET 158
REEFSHRANE - REZERIK - XLNHE
REZBRB/RERBEER  RAAMERERES
SEBRRAEHNHIZAMABRARES -

s DA RIR R R BFEAG BRI RE
ERMERMAZBRRFLBE ZBNNEE
REZMEERMATR  FBWT

A BIREBKARAREFRKE EH
TRRrEE AP MERHNEER
Fal

A B IR RBRARARRFRIAE L1
FHABRIARABRFBFAG LNE
BRFHIRER - AAELNERANE
[EGibs

BRREBMASBEEENEF

BERREBRMASBRERTZRF  S2HARFA
Shwww.dongyuechem.comFT HIE HIFR T

ats)

EREAFHREE

Report on Corporate Governance Practices

Promptly after confirmation that the EGM Requisitionists’ requisition is
in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene
the EGM by serving sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders in
accordance with all the relevant statutory requirements. According to the
Articles, the EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of the
requisition. If within twenty-one days of the deposit of the requisition, the
Board fails to proceed to convene the EGM, the EGM Requisitionists may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by them as a
result of failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the EGM Requisitionists
by the Company.

Procedures forthe Shareholders to putforward proposals
at a general meeting

To put forward proposals at AGM or EGM, the Shareholders should submit
a written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact information
to the Board or the Company Secretary at Unit 02, 15/F, AXA Center, 151
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The request will be verified and
upon confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will request the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration of
the proposal raised by the Shareholders concerned at AGM or SGM varies
according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

At least 14 clear days' notice in writing if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company in EGM

At least 21 clear days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes a
special resolution of the Company in EGM or an ordinary or special
resolution of the Company in AGM

Procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director
As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director,

please refer to the procedures made available on the Company’s website
www.dongyuechem.com.
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Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details are
as follows:

Unit 02, 15/F

AXA Centre,

151 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Fax: 852-3529-1009

Email: goodfit_kcdn@hotmail.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at any general
meetings of the Company.

Investor relations

Communication channels

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships with the
Shareholders, the Company has established various channels to facilitate
and enhance communication:

. the AGM provides a forum for the Shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board; and

. updated key information of the Group is available on the Company’s
website to enable the Shareholders and the investor community to
have timely access to information about the Group.

The Chairman and the Directors (including the chairmen and/or the
members of the various Board Committees) are available at AGM to answer
questions raised by the Shareholders.
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Attendance of the AGM held on 18 May 2012

A.6.7 of the Revised Code stipulates that all the INEDs should attend the
AGM in order to develop a balanced understanding of the views of the
Shareholders. Due to his urgent offshore business engagement, Mr. Liu Yi,
one of the INEDs, did not attend the AGM held on 18 May 2012. All the
other Directors who had attended the AGM had shared with Mr. Liu the
views of the Shareholders raised during the AGM and the Board will finalize
and inform the date of AGM as earliest as possible to make sure that all the
INEDs would attend the AGM in future.

Change in the constitutional documents of the
Company

During the year under review and up to the date of this report, there has
been no change in the constitutional documents of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jianhong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2013
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TO THE MEMBERS OF DONGYUE GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dongyue
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Group”) set out on pages 60 to 151, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.



ERTESRETREARBEAMEHRERMAINE
BEEBEEENEZEENIET - MEENRERF
R EED ) H B T E - B 4E AT (4 E B EF Sk EERR
MBHER G M5 MR FEE AR AR
REHE A B R R %'V%%A%FEJE%%%
BEERATHEEMERRBBOAREEE
ath)J/—\l /REI’J%VEF*T’EJ\QFEEWEAETE%W
MEENKRBERER - BERIIENERNGEE
%%%%m AARRERAEEAELA GG
FAREARE  URFEBERAVBHRRNERZS

EEMRE BFESNERERRERNNES RE
BEEERERNER -

KRE ISR THAR TR B BR B 75 3R 45 2
EIJ E?—iuﬂ?m&ﬁ% HEBMN2012512A318
MBI & EEEEHEZA EFERN T
MEERE  WEREES (CREN) MHER
TEXBRE -

mE « MERS SEEIIT
BEBATAD
)

201383 A20H

B ZE MRS
Independent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2012, and of
the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2013
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HZE20126128318 ILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

20124 20114
bz AR®T T ARETTT
2012 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Wk Revenue 6 7,050,822 10,165,200
HEMAR Cost of sales (5,367,436) (6,126,913)
E7 Gross profit 1,683,386 4,038,287
H A Other income 7 117,817 66,058
DR ER X Distribution and selling expenses (209,912) (211,849)
THRAZ Administrative expenses (367,203) (590,984)
R RFAZERX Research and development expenses (33,764) (9,603)
MEKAK Finance costs 8 (136,076) (150,277)
Fiit—REt & A RIEE Share of result of an associate 324 (201)
FRBE R A Profit before tax 1,054,572 3,141,431
FriSBiF Income tax expense 9 (347,509) (880,550)
REDRN B 2EBALLE  Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 10 707,063 2,260,381
T T A=A Profit and total comprehensive
ZHEWALRE : income attributable to:
Pi/NEIE 2SN Owners of the Company 713,056 2,189,861
PR AR R Non-controlling interests (5,993) 71,020
707,063 2,260,881
BRAEF Earnings per share 13
HEX (AREBIT) Basic (RMB) 0.34 1.04
#E (AR%T) Diluted (RMB) 0.34 1.03

o0 ZEZEEERCIES BEL LS
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

20129128318
At 31 December 2012

2012 20114F
M5k AR®ET T AREFIT
2012 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FEREBEE Non-current assets
W% - W RERE Property, plant and equipment 15 4,121,444 4,093,261
BEW  HSSREE2 Prepayment for purchase of property,

TEfTEIE plant and equipment 48,488 75,959
R tEE Prepayment for land lease 495 5,501
TEREE Prepaid lease payments 16 379,533 638,597
B EE Intangible assets 17 84,475 1,253
REEE R AR S Interest in an associate 18 1,593 779
AEHERE Available-for-sale investments 19 118,178 80,506
EIETIHEE Deferred tax assets 20 116,221 132,308
EES Goodwill 1,354 1354

4,871,781 5,029,518
REEE Current assets
"rE Inventories 21 524,926 648,656
EHERBR T ERME Properties under development for sale 22 372,884 -
BfEE Prepaid lease payments 16 10,909 17,404
JrE Uk AR 3k N B A R U SR IR Trade and other receivables 23 894,191 1,516,734
ZiEER Entrusted loans 24 400,000 403,000
BHEARITIFK Pledged bank deposits 25 20,570 4,340
IRITHEBRIIRS Bank balances and cash 25 1,682,728 1,509,280

3,906,208 4,099,414
REEE Current liabilities
PR AR N AN IR Trade and other payables 26 1,325,490 1,310,803
faE Borrowings 27 774,302 894,578
MIEEERE Tax liabilities 63,063 196,638
RIEWA Deferred income 28 8,256 7,215

2,171,111 2,409,234
MENE R Net current assets 1,735,097 1,690,180
BEERTEAE Total assets less current liabilities 6,606,878 6,719,698

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @
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At 31 December 2012

20124 20114F
FEE ARBT T ARETTT
2012 2011
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
EXR#E Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 29 201,111 201,111
& Reserves 4,747,204 4,581,977
/NI PN o Equity attributable to the owners of
the Company 4,948,315 4,783,088
FEPEAR AR R A e Non-controlling interests 278,543 292,208
e Total equity 5,226,858 5,075,296
FEREEE Non-current liabilities
EEYA Deferred income 28 199,613 168,029
BEHBAE Deferred tax liabilities 20 42,611 99,865
B Borrowings 27 1,137,796 1,376,508
1,380,020 1,644,402
6,606,878 6,719,698
FORISTENGA M ERRLEEZTEM2013%3  The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 151 were approved

A20B#AE KT - Wh TIIATREREE

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2013 and

RER
Zhang Jianhong
BEE
DIRECTOR

02 B ETUCIEE BELES

are signed on its behalf by:

ERK
Cui Tongzheng
BF
DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2012F12A3181LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

ALREE AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
BRE HERR FER
Ba RHEE i AKEE RARRE i REEA &t ReER &3t
ARETRL ARBTL ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR
(M) (H0) (Mo
Share Statutory Non-
Share Share  option  Merger  Capital  surplus  Retained controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings Total interests Total
RMB0O0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB0O0  RMBO0O  RMBO0O0  RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBO00
(notea)  (note ) (note )
W1E1R1RLER Balance at 1 January 2011 1993% 120269 24746 (322100 101098 2182 956759 2674266 192322 2806588
ERNaf REANALE Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 89861 2189861 7100 226088]
fiEREMEIHRR Shares issued upon exercie of share options 175 %43 (1379 - - - B 3 - eB
&3 Transfer - - - - - W s -
REFERBRERNLE Capital contrbution from non-controling interests - - - - - - - L7 ) 1)
BRAFERRFERRS Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - B (3%
ﬂ%x@ Dividends paid - - - - - S (e (3969) - (39
AIRERES 2 ARAR R Recognition of equity-settled shared-based payments - - 116760 - - - - 116760 - 16760
WHENANALS Balanceat 31 December 2011 L1 13888 127778 (32210) 101,098 497046 2649427 4783088 292,208 5075296
ENaf REANALE Profitand total comprehensive income for the year - - 713056 713056 (5993) 707,063
&3 Transfer - - - - - 130093 (130,093) - - -
ReFARRRERNLE (M537)  Capial contibution fiom non-contrling
interests (Note 37) - - - - - - - - 9,800 9,800
BRNHERR RGNS Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - - (17472 (17472)
ENRE Dividends paid - - - - - - (690876)  (690,876) - (690876)
AREES AR FE Recognition of equity-ettled shared-based paymens - - - - - - WM - WM
012512531 A LR Balance at 31 December 2012 200,111 1,238,838 270,825 (32,2100 101,098 627,139 2541514 4948315 278543 5226858
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE2012FE12A31B8ILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Merger reserve arose in group reorganisation completed in 2006.

On 16 November 2007, the Company repurchased all of the 275,000,000 previously
issued ordinary shares of US$0.1 each and these repurchased ordinary shares were
cancelled with all of the authorised but unissued share capital as of that date. On
the same date, the authorised share capital was increased to HK$400,000,000 by
the creation of 4,000,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each. 275,000,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were then issued to the shareholders existing on 15
November 2007. The excess of the repurchased amount over the nominal amount of
new shares issued was credited directly to the capital reserve.

The acquisitions of additional interest from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
were recognised as transactions with non-controlling interests and the corresponding
discount/premium were credited/debited directly against capital reserve.

In accordance with the Company Law of People’s Republic of China ("PRC") and the
relevant Articles of Association, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required
to appropriate amount equal to 10% of their profit after taxation as determined in
accordance with the PRC accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve.

Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity and when its balance reaches
an amount equal to 50% of the registered capital, further appropriation is not required.
According to the Company Law of the PRC, statutory surplus reserve may be used to
make up past losses, to increase production and business operations or to increase
capital by means of conversion.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2012F12A3181LFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

20125 20114
AR¥T ARETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
RETEs OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BB AT A Profit before tax 1,054,572 3,141,431
FHEIER : Adjustments for:
AR Finance costs 136,076 150,277
MEMA Interest income (95,985) (26,779)
RIEAZ IR Realisation of deferred income (8,256) (13,814)
TR (8E0)) EURERFORE Recognition (reversal) of impairment on
trade receivables 5,380 (492)
¢ [B] B A FE W SR IERL (B Reversal of impairment on other receivables (1,342) =
PrE R Depreciation and amortisation 556,027 508,517
EIREEEitk Release of prepaid lease payments 9,193 7,875
IR E 2 AR IS H Equity-settled share-based payment expenses 143,047 116,760
MWoRFE Write down of inventories 4,041 16,285
Frib — Rt & R Rl 4R Share of result of an associate (324) 201
MIB A RBREATIS W Gain on liquidation of subsidiary - (1,842)
AR ERE 2 RBMA Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments (2,848) (2,530)
HEME - e REESE Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment 17,908 56,024
BESEHH CLERELIME  Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital 1,817,489 3,951,913
R (380) Decrease (increase) in inventories 119,689 (171,516)
T?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ZEﬁ%%iﬂﬂ Increase in properties under development for sale (14,470) -
FEUBR R R At FEUGRIEUR > Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables
(12hn) 618,505 (488,505)
AR EAC BN FRIRIE AN Increase in trade and other payables 15,483 404,555
TR AIE BN Increase in deferred income 40,881 4,490
REMBRE Cash generated from operations 2,597,577 3,700,937
BT PSR IBHIE Income taxes and withholding tax paid (522,251) (767,174)
RETHMBREFHE NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2,075,326 2,933,763
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2012F12831BIEEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012%F 201148
ARBT R AREETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
REED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
ME=FIRHEEEER Entrusted loans to third parties (700,000) (328,000)
EEYH  HeESREE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (577,414) (859,566)
AR LA S Payment for prepaid land lease (97,042) (24,908)
BEREE Purchase of intangible assets (83,761) =
BEEAHEERE Purchase of available-for-sale
investments (37,672) (42,779)
TR EERRITIFR Placement of pledged bank deposits (25,463) (12,786)
M—XKEEARNEE Capital contribution to an associate (490) (980)
FE=HEERZTER Repayment of entrusted loans from
third parties 703,000 -
B UHLE Interest received 97,099 26,779
BERR B IRERITIE 5K Proceeds from release of
Fr{S /38 pledged bank deposits 9,233 24,384
LEWE - SRR Proceeds from disposals of property,
FR1S 58 plant and equipment 1,927 11,741
A ERE 2 REWA Dividend income from
available-for-sale investments 2,848 2,530
REEZBHMARESEHE NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (707,735) (1,203,585)
B R FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (1,163,988) (1,732,358)
AR S Dividends paid (690,876) (235,697)
BEAAFE Interest paid (136,607) (146,339)
BRI IR AR R i 2 Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests (17,472) (23,955)
EEFSFIE Proceeds from borrowings 805,000 1,270,500
=2 Hxﬁxﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests 9,800 14,432
Ifﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬂx%ﬁ“_ﬁ%% Net proceeds from issuance of shares
FRiSTIR% through exercise of share options - 37,898
METETAREFE NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (1,194,143) (815,519)
BR& R R € EB 8 0F 48 NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 173,448 914,659
FUZ2HREREFRSELEH CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,509,280 594,621
FRZASREDRS CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
EH AT END OF THE YEAR
Bl represented by:
RITEREIRE Bank balances and cash 1,682,728 1,509,280

) oss ZETEELBCIES BEL LS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

General

Dongyue Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 24 July 2006 as an exempted company with
limited liability. The address of its registered office is Scotia Centre,
4th Floor, PO. Box 2804, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands. The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 10 December
2007. Its immediate holding company is Macro-Link International
Investment Co,, Ltd. which in turn is owned by Macro-Link Sdn. Bhd.,
a company in which Mr. Fu Kwan owns a 45% interest.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture, distribution and
sale of refrigerants, polymers, organic silicone and dichloromethane,
polyvinyl chloride (“PVC") and liquid alkali and others. In addition,
the Group has also established Shandong Dongyue HFG23
Decomposition Project (‘CDM Project”) to decompose certain
greenhouse gases generated from the Group’s production process
in order to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

The addresses of principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information” in the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @
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Application of new and revised accounting
standards

New and revised Amendments applied in the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised amendments to International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("lASB").

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
— Transfers of Financial Assets

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year
has had no material effect on the amounts reported in these
consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Application of new and revised accounting
standards (Continued)

New and revised Standards, Interpretations and

Amendments issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised IFRSs
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that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRS 7
Amendments to IFRS 9

and HKFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 11 and IFRS 12

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 27

IFRS 9

IFRS 10

IFRS 11

IFRS 12

IFRS 13

IAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

IAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle'

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities'

Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosures?

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities: Transition Guidance'

Investment Entities?

Financial Instruments?

Consolidated Financial Statements'
Joint Arrangements’

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’
Fair Value Measurement'

Employee Benefits'

Separate Financial Statements'

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @



GRE B SRR M R
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE2012FE12A31B8ILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

2. BRI REIER] 25t ER
(&)
B S48 5 2 3 0 T 3T R 4B 48 5T
8 RBRBTA (H)

REETRERIZE8E NIE QR REE

(2011 LLUERT) PERKE!

BB e s 4R Hih2EKRAIEE
FIRENMERT K251

B & 055325 KiEemEER
BEET CRIAE

BB EiE BAESEERN
ZEg —%E FIBRAC AN
2058
201341 A1 B sk AR FISA K F [ HARE A2 o
7201451 A1 B s AR FIAR FEHIR AR ©

201581 A1 B AR BIARFE HARAERK -
2012457 A 1 B S AR RS H) F E BRI A 2K ©

B SR ERFREERmMT A

BRI TR S E R ot 2 A TA (20094
N ABEM) SIAEBSREBES ENTED
FHTE - EERPBREELNFESREFH T A
(72010 11 BE&IEE]) MABHEEREER
BUBHERHERE ©

A woN -

LEE - RIBBIRMEREERIESE - FT
EBER S ERIEREHMTA - #AR
FEBBEANCRIASREE  HRORE
HRAS A FEFE - LHRE  REER
AFFA M B WAKRANRESRENEBR
B UAREAXNAE MAEEASHEH
BRRTRENEBHRE - —RIONERE
AR RS IR B SR AT & - PR RMIR
BB R EGRE R @5 M &R
BAVERE -

I3 R B 745 3R 5 4 BI| 595 7420154F1 A1 H 8¢
VATE BRIA R FE BRRS A2 - I AT IR P ERAR ©

E=TEE - BB ETREERIFE R A
SEB 520151 A1 HABRNPTBRFENLGES
B 75 TR R AR AN - % E A B B A s AE Al
FORAREH AR B A HHERENE RS
HEATE  BYHAEESRAENERS
RWHESE - SR+ EK AR AT M
SRS EN A IBMEET I AI1T ©

Q) ==5mam07 | —2—==5%

2.

Application of new and revised accounting
standards (Continued)

New and revised Standards, Interpretations and
Amendments issued but not yet effective (Continued)

IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures'
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of [tems of
Other Comprehensive Income*
Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?
IFRIC-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

O

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November 2009) introduces
new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as revised in November 2010)
adds requirements for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Specifically, under IFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at either amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015, with earlier adoption permitted.

The directors anticipate that IFRS 9 will be adopted in the Group's
consolidated financial statements for financial year beginning on 1
January 2015 and that the application of IFRS9 might have impact
on amounts reported in respect of the Group's available-for-sale
investments but no impact on amounts reported in respect of the
Group’s financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

Application of new and revised accounting
standards (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint

arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including IFRS
10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and IAS 28 (as revised
in 2011) and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted provided that all of
these five new or revised standards are applied early at the same
time. The directors of the Company anticipate that these new
or revised standards will be applied in the Group's consolidated
financial statements for financial year beginning on 1 January 2013
and the potential impact is described below.

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial statements
and SIC12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. IFRS 10 includes a
new definition of control that contains three elements: (a) power
over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) ability to use its power over
the investee to affect the amount of the investor's returns. Extensive
guidance has been added in IFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios
including scenarios.

The directors anticipate that the application of these five standards
is unlikely to have significant impact on amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements.

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @
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Application of new and revised accounting
standards (Continued)

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of IFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other IFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In general,
the disclosure requirements in IFRS 13 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently
required for financial instruments only under IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by IFRS 13 to cover all
assets and liabilities within its scope.

IFRS 13 is effective for the Group for the annual period beginning on
1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the application of the new standard
is unlikely to have material impact on the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements but may result in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to IAS 1 retain the option to present consolidated
income statement and other comprehensive income in either a
single statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to IAS 1 require additional disclosures
to be made in the other comprehensive income section such that
items of other comprehensive are grouped into two categories:(a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss,
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and
loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same basis.

The amendments to IAS 1 are effective for the Group for annual
period beginning on 1 January 2013. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when
the amendments are applied in the future accounting periods.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised IFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and financial position of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition and
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group's equity therein.

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the carrying amounts of the non-
controlling interests and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises
the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (i)
derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including
any components of other comprehensive income attributable
to them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognise as a gain or loss in profit
or loss attributable to the Group. When assets of the subsidiary are
carried at revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net
assets of the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount, any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group losing
significant influence over that associate, any retained investment is
measured at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as
its fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance
with IAS 39. The difference between the previous carrying amount
of the associate attributable to the retained interest and its fair value
is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate on the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain orloss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it
loses significant influence over that associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in
the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following
conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sale of refrigerants, polymers and organic silicone
and dichloromethane, PVC and liquid alkali is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has passed.

CDM Project involves the sale of Certified Emission Reductions
("CERs") certificates to industrialised countries. Sales of CERs are
recognised when the Group concludes a valid sales contract with the
buyer, the risks and rewards of the CERs are properly transferred to
the accounts of the buyer registered with United Nations Framework
Convention on Climate Change and that the collectability of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income from a
financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants of which the primary condition is
that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on
a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwiill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary

differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they

are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress as described below)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Construction in progress for production, supply or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent payment for leasehold interest in
land classified as operating lease and are released to profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the term
of relevant land leases.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effective of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amountoftheassetand are recognisedin the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
(or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised
if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Research and development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the
same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Exploration rights

Exploration rights that are expected to generate future economic
benefits to the Group are capitalised as assets and stated at cost less
impairment losses. Amortisation commences when they are ready
for their intended use.

When it can be reasonably ascertained that an exploration property
is capable of commercial production (after obtaining the mining
right certificates), exploration rights are transferred to either mining
infrastructure or mining rights and amortised using the unit of
production method based on the proven and probable mineral
reserves.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value at
the end of each reporting date. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are included in current assets
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
takes into account the price ultimately expected to be realised and
the anticipated costs to completion.

The properties under development for sale comprise land costs and
construction costs according to the Group's accounting policy and
directly attributable expenses incurred during the development
period.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories, including loans and receivables and available-for-sale
investments. The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, entrusted loans, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).



FESFEER (&)
eI A (&)

TRHEE (&)

AR ERE
WHEERTSRELE RN FEKRERSEAE
AR ERARE - UAREAZFERER
ATABRMBERMAENRNZEERERA
TAFXEENTTETE - I HREHRIZ
AR BRBER R E (R TXE
HERMEERENSFTBER) -

TR EERE
EREENREPRZZBET RIS - &
BERBEBRTERMEENETARRER
EARYIPERLZTREERELE —AXS
HEAMZEFE  ARRSREEHRR
f# -

IAESREEMS @ RENTHERIE
1

BITARYEFHHRERT BR
%

B DI E R s HE R S S R B R AR
% 8k

tER AP BEEI iR EE S A5 5 4E ¢+ Bk

A BERENTZEMEERE LR

W -

HETerREERR (EUERR R EME
WIE) » WS AIEERIRENEE SN
LR BT ERT S - BUGKIBHEE R
REREEEBEAEENBAE KKK
B A ANBHOB 1808 FHEEHHN
BT FOREUL N - LA K B R U FUEE B A
B8 /9 2 Bl sl 75 4 PR O R BB U o

fre B ER P E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BZE2012F 128318 1LEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale instruments

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of the reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 90 days or 180 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade and other receivables are considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of afinancial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Share based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received is determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will continue to be held in share options
reserve.
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4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concurring the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts on trade and other
receivables

The Group’s management assesses the recoverability and
determines the provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note
3. Such estimation is based on the credit history of its customers
and the current market conditions. Management reviews the debtor
settlement status periodically and reassesses the sufficiency of
provision accordingly. The aggregate carrying value of trade and
other receivables at 31 December 2012, net of allowance for doubtful
debts of RMB8,304,000 (2011: RMB2,924,000), was approximately
RMB790,460,000 (2011: RMB1,313,240,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Collectability of entrusted loans

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss on entrusted
loans, the Group estimates the future cash flows of entrusted loans
for impairment testing purpose. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the entrusted loans’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise in future financial periods. The
aggregate carrying value of entrusted loans at 31 December 2012
was RMB400,000,000 (2011: RMB403,000,000).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on projected product
lifecycles and economic life of property, plant and equipment.
It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write off or
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. The aggregate carrying value of property,
plant and equipment at 31 December 2012 was RMB4,121,444,000
(2011: RMB4,093,261,000). Further details are disclosed in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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4.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment is reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may not be recoverable. The recoverable amount
of these assets, or, where appropriate, the cash-generating unit to
which they belong, is the higher of their fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
estimate the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Where the actual cash flows are
less than expected, a material loss may arise. The aggregate carrying
value of property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2012 was
approximately RMB4,121,444,000 (2011: RMB4,093,261,000).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets relating to certain deductible temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as the Group’s management
considers it is probable that the future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses or
tax credit can be utilised. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred tax assets. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
at 31 December 2012 was approximately RMB116,221,000 (2011:
RMB132,308,000). Further details are disclosed in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Exploration rights

The Group's exploration rights have a finite validity period, after
which the Group will need to apply for renewal. The Group's
exploration rights will expire in October 2013. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Group will be able to renew
the exploration rights with the relevant government authority
continuously at insignificant cost before their expiry and it is not
anticipated that any material legal impediments would prevent
the Group from renewing its exploration rights provided that the
Group submits the relevant application documents in compliance
with the applicable PRC laws and regulations to the relevant
PRC government authorities. In addition, the Group will begin
amortisation of the mining rights (transferred from exploration
rights) when it is ready for the intended use (after the Group obtains
the mining right certificates from the relevant PRC authority).
If there is any material impediments which would prevent the
Group from renewing its exploration rights or obtaining the
mining right certificates, impairment loss may be recognised. The
carrying amount of exploration rights at 31 December 2012 was
RMB80,000,000 (2011: nil).

Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings disclosed
in note 27, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share
capital, share premium, reserves and retained earnings.
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Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. As
a part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

(@) Categories of financial instruments

20124 20114F
AR¥ET T AREFIT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
EREE Financial assets
ERREWRIE (BIECEM  Loans and receivables (including
RITIFAK ~ |ITEBRKIEE)  pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash) 2,897,456 3,233,308
AMHEHERE Available-for-sale investments 118,178 80,506
3,015,634 3,313,814
M=k Financial liabilities
BESHAAR Amortised cost 3,138,063 3,428,567
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, entrusted
loans, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables
and borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group's
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

THEEE Market risks
) EEER () Currencyrisk
R B A T IS A AR The functional currencies of the PRC subsidiaries are
W A 2 AT B A A R S 4 RMB with most of the transactions settled in RMB.
& o SR - ANEE B EINES B However, foreign currency (mainly the United States
BN S E A eIMEE i S dollar “US$") were received when the Group earned
MR T 0 1) i (< SIE S 1 U R revenue from overseas customers and when settling
GNEE (ETAZETT ([E7T])) » payables for purchases of machinery and equipment
from the overseas suppliers.
AN = [N 4 A ST S B R The Group does not have any hedging policy to manage
T [E] 3 1T INRE X B T EE A Y L the risk arising from foreign currency transactions. In
B o AR DB HINERER - AN order to reduce the risk of holding foreign currencies,
£ B 4% B R A 45 3R ) N A~ 2= the Group normally converts the foreign currencies into
ZHEHE » ERE e IEN AR RMB upon receipt while taking into account its foreign
ENUS HNEE 35 Hapk A FRHE o currencies payment schedule in the near future.
RIRERE] - AEE R INE S The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
BENSEaENEDENT denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the reporting date are as follows:
&E =R+
Assets Liabilities
20126 20114 20125 20114F
ARMTRE ARBTT ARMTRE AREBTET
2012 2011 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ETT Uss 320,003 231,224 151,943 189,792
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2012, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against USS$ with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would
have been RMBI12,604,000 (2011: RMB3,107,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of USS denominated bank
balances and cash, trade and other receivables and
USS denominated borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see note 27 for
details of these borrowings). At 31 December 2012,
12% (2011: 5%) of the Group's borrowings bear fixed
interest rates.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank deposits, entrusted loans and
variable-rate borrowings (see note 27 for details of
these borrowings).

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the market deposit
rate and the PRC official lending rate and London Inter-
Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR") arising from the Group’s RMB
borrowings and USD borrowings respectively.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
balances, and variable-rate borrowings. The analysis is
prepared on the financial balance at the end of reporting
period. 10 and 25 basis point (2011: 10 and 25 basis
point) increase or decrease is used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rate.

In relation to the Group's exposure to interest rates risk
on bank deposits, if interest rates had been 10 basis
points (2011: 10 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2012 would increase/
decrease by RMB1,278,000 (2011: RMB1,135,000).

Furthermore, in relation to the Group's exposure to
interest rates risk on variable-rate borrowings, if interest
rates had been 25 basis points (2011: 25 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables held constant, the
Group's post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2012 would decrease/increase by RMB3,148,000 (2011:
RMB4,016,000), mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expenses on floating rate borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, entrusted loans, trade and other
receivables, and other current assets (except for prepayment)
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
in relation to financial assets. The objective of the Group's
measures to manage credit risk is to control potential exposure
to recoverability problem. Most of the Group's cash and cash
equivalents are held in major financial institutions in the PRC,
which management believes are of high credit quality.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group assesses the credit worthiness and
financial strength of its customers as well as considering prior
dealing history with the customers. Generally, customers are
granted with credit periods less than 90 days or 180 days
and the Group usually does not require collaterals nor any
credit enhancement from its customers. An aging analysis
of trade and other receivables is set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group’s management
makes periodic collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of trade receivables based
on historical payment records, the length of the overdue
period, the financial strength of the customers and whether
there are any trade disputes with them.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has policies to ensure the entrusted loans are
made to entities with an appropriate credit history and the
Group assesses the credit worthiness and financial strength
of them as well as considering prior dealing history with them.
Generally, the entities are granted with maturity of one year.
The Group’s management continuously monitors collections
and payments from its customers and the allowance
recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flow discounted at an effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise (please
see note 24 for details). In addition, before accepting any new
debtor, the Group conducts research on the creditworthiness
of the new debtor and assesses the potential debtor's credit
quality and defines credit limits by debtor. The Group offers
various settlement terms which vary depending on the size
of contract, credibility and reputation of the debtor. Loans
balances are not past due or impaired at the end of reporting
period. The directors of the Company continuously evaluate
the creditworthiness of the independent third parties and
may, on a case by case basis, extend the repayment date on
mutual agreement.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.
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5. Capital risk and financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2012, the Group has
available undrawn borrowing facilities of approximately
RMB5,333,220,000 (31 December 2011: RMB3,953,540,000).
Details of which are set out in note 27.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group'’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.

20128
i 3] 128318
FHFE AAR 183088 MERE1E 125 REREAE HREE
% ARMTT AR%TR  ARBTR  ARETR  AR¥TRT  ARETR
Carrying
Weighted Total amount at
average Less than 1-3 3 months Tyearto  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1 month months to 1year 5years cash flows 2012
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000

20125128318 31 December 2012
FERERHREMBNTE  Trade and other payables - 590,809 486,680 148,476 - 1,225,965 1,225,965

{2 Borrowings

) - fixed rates 6.53 532 1,064 63,342 183,065 248,003 233,250
—%5 - variable rates 6.65 109,103 286,603 214,546 1,260,375 1,870,627 1,678,848
700,444 774,347 426,364 1,443,440 3,344,595 3,138,063

102 ZEZEEERCIEL BEL LS
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5. EXxEREMERMEEBES 5. Capital risk and financial risk management

RBUER (&) objectives and policies (Continued)
(b) BIEEERERBFERBXK (&) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
RBESREBER (H) Liquidity risk (Continued)
HEE S NFIEERER () Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)
IS
e AR A3B

FaNE AR 1B@A BARIA IEF  BlSF RORSLE  WRAERE
% AR¥TR ARMTT ARETR ARBTR ARMTT ARMTR ARETR

Carrying

Weighted Total  amountat
average Less than 1-3 3 months 1yearto Over  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 1month months to 1 year 5 years Syears  cashflows 2011

% RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000

0115128318 31 December 2011
BN RA A Trade and other payables - 485,137 513372 158972 - - 1548 115748
B8 ‘ Borrowings
- E%\ - fived rates 6.50 428 75555 246 31339 = 107,568 105,000
-%8 - variable rates 594 167,371 230579 470610 1559434 - 2427.9% 2,166,086
652,936 819506 629808 1590773 - 3693043 3428567
N2 Pali BRI o o
6. W=k oEES 6. Revenue and segment information
Wtk B B mmiH S HEs © Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of goods.
REBEEBHRBEFAEENTREREID ° The Group's operations are organised based on the different types
LHER MARAESE (ABRLERK of goods sold. Specifically, information reported to the Board of
N) EAEERD I R BRIBAEHE directors of the Company, being the chief operating decision maker,
BEFREZNEMBET o il HAREE RS for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
DELE o performance focuses on types of goods delivered. This is the basis

upon which the Group is organised.
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6. WERDTHWESR (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
DEPU IS N e Segment revenues and results
REFIRS MG ELSEHIZE R EERN D The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by
T o reportable and operating segment.
20124 2012
8%
BRH O BATHR BHE (ER PICREE 2HIPAE Aok Hy a3t
ARBTR ARETR ARETR  ARBTR ARBTR  ARETR ARETR  ARBTR ARETR
Dichloromethane, Reportable
Organic PVCand segments’ Other
Refrigerants Polymers silicone CER Liquid Alkali total operations  Eliminations Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
e Bxtemal sles 2319819 1,944,666 1346470 184,697 111146 6,906,898 143,924 - 7050822
AHEEEE Inter-segment sales 1351502 - 4,808 - 53355 1,409,665 414,064 (1823,729) -
Blhs - Al Total revenue - segment revenue 3,671,321 1,944,666 1,351,278 184,697 1,164,601 8,316,563 557,988 (1,823,729) 7,050,822
PBxR SEGMENT RESULTS 296,270 856,118 (22,848) 135,524 92,003 1,357,067 (9,669) - 1,347,398
AARERRR Unallocated corporate expenses (15992)
_*ﬂ@ﬁ‘r@&]\ Unallocated other income 2,848
RAENA I Finance costs (136,076)
FlE—FBEATEE Share of resuft of an associate 324
BBiAnER Profit before tax 1,054,572
20114 201
~ e ‘
IGH BTk Bk (R MCRER  2HaBaE AfoxH 4 &5
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETT  ARETT  ARBTT  AREBTT  ARETR
Dichloromethane, Reportable
Organic PVCand segments' QOther
Refrigerants Polymers slicone (R Liquid Alkali total operations Eliminations Total
RMBO00 RMBO000 RMBO00 RMB1000 RMBO00 RMBO00 RMBO000 RMBO00 RMBO000
ﬁ?“iﬁ% External sales 3893456 3,183,248 1,053,580 319557 1463884 9913725 L1475 o 10,165,200
PERNEE Intersegment sales 1663735 - 12749 - 55043 1731527 345008 (2076539) -
s - HilE Total revenue - segment revenue 5557191 3,183,248 1066329 319557 1518927 11645252 596483 (2076539) 10,165,200
IS SEGMENT RESULTS 1703481 1305819 (75667) 250706 191,887 3376226 39812 - 3416038
AOMAZRHT Unallocated corporate expenses (128501)
*ﬁ@ﬂﬁf@&]\ / Unallocated otherincome 2530
WE’AW%%W s (Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary 1842
RERA Finance costs (150277)
FlE—FBEAREE Share of result of an associate (201)
BALER Profit before tax 3141431

10« ZETEEERUIES BEL LS
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

Revenue and information

(Continued)

segment

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating segments
are the same as the Group's accounting policies as described in note
3. Segment results represent the results of each segment without
allocation of unallocated other income, central administration costs,
directors’ salaries, share of result of an associate and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
No segment information on assets and liabilities is presented as such
information is not reported to the chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

Entity-wide disclosures

Information about revenue from refrigerants segment by
products from external customers

20124 20114

AR®F T ARET T

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB'000

—HE &R BHCFC-22) Monochlorodifluoromethan (HCFC-22) 1,062,085 1,781,785
PO Z Kt (R134a) Tetrafluoroethane (R134a) 392,617 570,141
A BLE(R125) Pentafluoroethane (R125) 157,017 407,731
R439A R439A 85,500 509,074
R410a R410a 91,013 =
R413A R413A 55,124 117,560
R142b R142b 129,207 108,927
R152a R152a 76,796 80,561
Hh Others 270,460 317,677
2,319,819 3,893,456
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6. WmkoABER ()

ERZEEE ()
ERERERD BB THHEDHRE IR

6. Revenue and segment information

(Continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

Information about revenue from polymers segment by

EFHREER products from external customers
20124 2014F
AR®F T ARETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
BRIUE L& (PTFE) Polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE) 1,451,166 2,264,578
INERNE (HFP) Hexafluoropropylene (HFP) 455,908 866,802
N&EIRT I Perfluorocyclobutane 34,000 38,382
Hity Others 3,592 13,486
1,944,666 3,183,248
ERRERIE2ERESBRAIREF Information about revenue from organic silicone segment by
B E R products from external customers
20126 20114F
AR®T T ARETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
DMC (ZRERALRAIRE)  DMC (Dimethylcyclosiloxane) 577,490 467,119
107818 B 107 Silicone Rubber 272,377 264,961
G Raw Vulcanizate 137,457 133,858
D3 (NHRER=FERL) D3 (Hexamethylcyclotrisiloxane) 18,517 12,012
RERE Gross Rubber 37,030 6,943
RARB K& Gaseous Silica 46,760 5448
DMCIK ) DMC Hydrolysate 62,406 16,154
=RESREL Trimethylchlorosilane 80,092 45,565
FEG SR Methyldichlorosilane 28,713 18,034
Hity Others 85,628 83,486
1,346,470 1,053,580

10 ZETREERCIES BEL LS
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Revenue and information

(Continued)

segment

Entity-wide disclosures (Continued)

Information about revenue from Dichloromethane, PVC and

BAMRE F B Wi E Liquid Alkali by products segment from external customers
20124 201148
AR®F T ARETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
pvC pPVC 495,236 632,670
—EF Dichloromethane 216,823 372,750
B Liquid alkali 399,187 458,464
1,111,246 1,463,884
FRRERIBE2HMKEIBRAIIRE Information about revenue from other operations segment by

FHs=ER products from external customers

20124 20114F
ARBTR ARBFIT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
AHF (JE7KBUES) AHF (Anhydrous Fluoride) 5,100 46,707
FLE% Ammonium Bifluoride 62,410 109,200
TR Hydrofluoric Acid 20,994 30,747
RE Bromine 16,893 23,249
Hh Others 38,527 41,572
143,924 251,475

EBEXEEFEHR Information about major customers

HZ=2012F12 A31 8 I WIEFFE & FHEE R

There was no revenue from a single customer that contributed over

BE —FF 7S ASBRIEETEMN10% 10% of the total sales of the Group during each of the two years
LA L - ended 31 December 2012.
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22 >: RAY = . .
6. WERDTHWESR (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
wEER Geographical information
KEBRKBINEREE 2 WHZREE R FE The Group's revenue from external customers by geographical
/(I N location of customers is detailed below:
20125 201148
ARETT ARETIT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
s PRC 5,135,697 7,113,537
o (BRAEESN) Asia (except PRC)
— B — Japan 334,727 615,710
— A58 — South Korea 233,892 392,353
—HE — India 22,080 29,131
— ¥ - Singapore 49,133 50,197
— &R — Thailand 64,763 61,510
— P EE & B R B — United Arab Emirates 34,157 70,694
— BAEHEMA — Pakistan 18,645 26,626
— BRI ~ Malaysia 30,793 41,219
— EMEIR — Other countries 197,952 208,083
INET Subtotal 986,142 1,495,523
=M America
— XE — United States of America 276,343 516,518
—Ef — Brazil 129,109 129,913
— 87 — Chile 12,372 31,973
— EMEIR — Other countries 19,020 23,581
1NEF Subtotal 436,844 701,985

) 10s ZETREERCIES BEL LS
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and segment information

Geographical information (Continued)

20125 201148
AR®ET T ARETIT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000

BOM Europe
— BRAH —Italy 216,814 333,667
— B — England 63,965 163,090
— R ZEHT — Russia 33,734 36,613
— AT — Spain 8,308 25,155
— 2 - Germany 34,128 64,435
— EH — France 9,591 56,579
— HMBER — Other countries 34,239 48,897
NET Subtotal 400,779 728436

IEM Africa

— M3k — South Africa 21,045 38,856
—KR& — Egypt 27,201 31,929
— FEB#ZE ~ Nigeria 14,062 22,030
== — Other countries 6,650 4,125
N Subtotal 68,958 96,940
HEMBER = Other countries/regions 22,402 28,779
7,050,822 10,165,200

PIEREEZEREBEEIMNTE -

All of the non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC.
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6. WERDTHWESR (&) 6. Revenue and segment information
(Continued)
HihnHER Other segment information
g8k E2HKSE
H2RH BAFHR BHE CER PVCR G  AHEE  HitER &t
ARETT ARETRT AREBTT ARETn ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Reportable
and
Dichloromethane,  operating
Organic PVCand  segments’ Other
Refrigerants  Polymers silicone CER Liquid Alkali total  operations Total
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
20126 2012
nE  KER Depreciation of property,
SENE plant and equipment 244,271 82,052 109,327 7,618 84913 528,181 27307 555488
B EESH Amortisation of intangible
assets 109 109 287 - 28 533 6 539
BHEAEWERS 2 Impairment losses
REEE recognised on trade
receivables 2,523 1,990 393 - 376 5,282 98 5380
BN EMBEYWFIE  Reversal of impaiment
B on other receivables 1,118 - - - 187 1,305 37 1,342
BHZBEZZ  Researchand development
MERFEKAR  costsrecognised as an
expense 3,703 27,354 2,376 - - 33,433 331 33,764
RS Write-down of inventories - - 541 - 3,500 4,041 - 4,041
WEME - #ERK  Loss on disposals of
Bl property, plant and
equipment 2,368 15,094 - - 153 17,615 293 17,908
BEBEMAHS Release of prepaid lease
payments 3,324 1,110 2,008 76 676 7,194 1,999 9,193
2011 2011
nE - KER Depreciation of property,
RBIE plant and equipment 244041 79012 87,541 7058 67087 484739 20679 506418
B EESH Amortisation of intangible
assets 1141 - 673 4) 219 2075 24 2,099
SEMEWBRTUAE  Reversal of impairment
on trade receivables (245) - - (1) (245) (491) (1) (492)
ERAARSZ  Researchand development
MARFEKAR  costsrecognised as an
expense 1528 6,083 1,791 - - 9402 201 9,603
RS Write-down of inventories - - 14763 - - 14763 1522 16285
HEWE  #EEK  Loss on disposals of property,
FREER plant and equipment 21752 20977 - 1143 4311 55,183 841 56,024
BEEMAHS Release of prepaid lease
payments 2956 282 2008 77 512 5835 2040 7875
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7. Otherincome

20124 201148
ARBTR ARETIT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
IEgiag Government grants

— HESIER A (M) — related to expense items (Note) 3,623 12,731
—HEESR (5E28) — related to assets (Note 28) 8,256 13,814
RITE R B HA Bank deposits interest income 20,686 9,582
ZEEFA BWA Interest income on entrusted loans 75,299 17,197
M A RlERATE Y Gain on liquidation of a subsidiary - 1,842

AIHEERE 2 RBEWA Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments 2,848 2,530
Hh Others 7,105 8,362
117,817 66,058
et : BISHMEZRERTEERS  EEEAHBERA Note: The government grants are mainly for the expenditures on research activities

RARX ° which are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

BE XA

8. Finance costs

20124 20114
ARBTR ARBFIT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
ME Interest on:

ARAFRNEEEEZ Bank loans wholly repayable within five years
RITER 131,369 140,986
ARAFANEBEZEMIEE  Other borrowings repayable within five years 5,705 10,770
BB AN Total borrowing costs 137,074 151,756
W BAREAREE Less: amounts capitalised (998) (1,479)
136,076 150,277

FRBRERZEERN IR —RIEERE
£ A EREERSY RUNETHE
L R G E6.53% (20114F : 6.08%) 5T °

on qualifying assets.

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the general
borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a weighted average
capitalisation rate of 6.53% (2011: 6.08%) per annum to expenditure
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9. FRBEHiRAX

9. Income tax expense

20124 20114F
ARBT R ARETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
IR PR EE T PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT")
(TEEMET)
— EBRIFE - Current year (305,757) (842,893)
— REFERETE — Underprovision in prior years (4,858) (1,822)
(310,615) (844,715)
BEERIBS H (FiFE20) Deferred tax charge (Note 20)
— BB A AR 5k — withholding tax for distributable
i Al TR profits of PRC subsidiaries (22,053) (70,440)
— Al ~ others (14,841) 34,605
(36,894) (35,835)
FriSHi > 4258 Total income tax expense (347,509) (880,550)

) #=xmmm0n | —e-—=5r4



9. FIEBiMx< (&)
A ERUARIX B & 2 ERA SRR BB

ADE M B SRR T

iR e SRR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZE2012812A3BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

9. Income tax expense (Continued)

The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

follows:

2012 20114

AR%TR ARETT

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB'000

R A& A Profit before tax 1,054,572 3,141,431
ARG RAE Tax charge at enterprise income tax rate

HIAH (Ffsta) (Note a) (263,643) (785,358)
DARB A R T8 52 22 Tax effect of income not taxable

for tax purpose 275 580
FTiE—SREsE & A RIZE AR Tax effect of share of result of an associate

MIRR & 81 (50)

DA IR 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose (48,153) (32,426)
CDMIE B Frf& s F a9 5 Tax effect of EIT concession on profit

s EERNHIET 2 from CDM project (Note b)

(BtzEDb) 17,743 33,031
AERREBENTIEZE  Taxeffect of tax losses not recognised (26,272) (33,978)
F A SR AR R IEE B Utilisation of tax losses previously

not recognised 170 10,279
BEFERETRE Underprovision in respect of prior years (4,858) (1,822)
F B FfT A Rl A] 5k Deferred tax on distributable earnings

BFIRELEFIE (FisEc) of PRC subsidiaries (Note c) (22,053) (70,440)
Hity Others (799) (366)
ANFERIAR ST Tax expense for the year (347,509) (880,550)
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9. FASHiRAX (&)

FEE -

(@  B%REACEAESHHBEEAAREIEMNERF
LERRECTBRAR ([RELT]) - IWRRE
SO FMHERAF ([RESAF)) REER
ERRERARNBBAEHTE

(b) Fh B B IR D % B R B S 48 B R 20094F3 A 23 H B
HimAl - AABRBCOME R EFSREE - R
A - COMIE B Fr15% 5 7] B A R 18 B 16 FRER
COMIE R R B B EEFIFERE =FRHhE
Fisft - WHRHEB=FZHLEMESHREESR
(TEEFBHER]) - ILREMBEREA R E2007
F1R1BREYER - RECEMSHESR - 7
BEEXAYCDMIB B E MR 2011 E R2012EZ A %
FiERURFEE -

© BETBIRERREERHAEEHIRT
[2008]8815% XX 4 + 1 B & §8 82008451 A1 H & FT
EEREFTDRNRE  BREGMNIREDE
FMINE R EEFTB IR B3IR7IEA R OIEiRE
BEMINEREMBBIEE AR FEoERH
TEBMTEFTEH - B R RRDIREF BT
TIEE &4 A R#22,053,0007T (20114F : AR
70,440,0007T) BEFAFABL ©

Q) ==smam0m | —2—==p

9.

Income tax expense (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Applicable enterprise income tax rate of 25% represents the relevant income
tax rate of Shandong Dongyue Chemicals Co,, Ltd. ("Dongyue Chemicals”),
Shandong Dongyue Polymers Co,, Ltd. (‘Dongyue Polymers”) and Zibo
Dongyue Lvyuan Co,, Ltd. which are the major subsidiaries of the Company.

The China Ministry of Finance and State Tax Bureau issued a notice on 23 March
2009 in relation to the EIT policy on CDM. According to the notice, the profit
earned from CDM project is entitled to an exemption from EIT for the first three
years since its first profit making year and 50% reduction for the next three
years ("EIT Concession”), commencing from the time when the project starts
to earn the CDM revenue. This EIT Exemption had a retrospective effect from
1 January 2007. According to the EIT Concession, the profit earned from CDM
project entitles 50% reduction of EIT in 2011 and 2012.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation, Cai Shui [2008] No.1, dividend distributed out of the profits generated
since 1 January 2008 held by the PRC entity shall be subject to EIT pursuant
to Articles 3 and 27 of the Income Tax Law Concerning Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and Article 91 of the Detailed Rules
for the Implementation of the Income Tax Law for Enterprises with Foreign
Investment and Foreign Enterprises. Deferred tax liability of RMB22,053,000
(2011: RMB70,440,000) on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries has been
charged to profit or loss for the year.
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BZE2012812A3BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

10. FREAMRZEBALTE 10. Profit and total comprehensive income for
the year
FRRMNEREEBALED R GEA) T Profit and total comprehensive income for the year has been arrived
HI%IE - at after charging (crediting) the following items:
2012 20114F
ARET R ARETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
R BRI Short-term employee benefits 245,932 269,799
BIBEIEAL (MosEa) Discretionary bonus (Note a) 5,000 169,346
RNET Post-employment benefits 54,829 49615
PRiEREE 2 AR XANFIX Equity-settled share-based payment expenses 143,047 116,760
Efth 8 T4 Other staff welfare 19,265 25,328
#E T (Mi5Eb) Total staff costs (Note b) 468,073 630,848
ERRAAZ 2 FERAR Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 5,367,436 6,126,913
M - M RRIEITE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 555,488 506,418
BIVEE#E GTAHEKA) Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in cost of sales) 539 2,099
ZEETB S Auditor’s remuneration 2,421 2,409
b W R F AR Net foreign exchange losses 6,855 15,070
TR (8E[0]) EURBRFORE Recognition (reversal) of impairment
on trade receivables 5,380 (492)
1 [o] 5t e WK IE R (E Reversal of impairment on other receivables 1,342 =
ERERRAZ 2T R Research and development costs recognised
FEER A as an expense 33,764 9,603
MWRFE Write-down of inventories 4,041 16,285
BoEcMEe Release of prepaid lease payments 9,193 7,875
HEWE - WS MRIBEIE  Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment 17,908 56,024
Bt : a: BMIBSIEALRE TEARRETE ° Notes: a: Discretionary bonus is determined based on the individual performance of

the individuals.

b: NEBTITHABIEESHE - b: Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs.
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N EBRFTETBRAEME 11. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
[9% (20114F : 9%) B/ AC M ESR The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 9 (2011: 9) directors
T - were as follows:

2012%
2012
RELEE
WA B ZHWRB
ik e (W) sHEMS XEx HitER a3t
ARBTT ARBTRT AR%TR ARMTR AREBTRT AR%Tr AR%TR
Equity-settled
Pension  share-based
Discretionary scheme payment Other
Fees Salary bonus (Note) contributions expenses benefits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BITES Executive Directors
RERTE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 144 250 - - 13,067 - 13,461
BERE Mr. Fu kiwan 144 - - - - - 144
fEsrs Mr. Liu Chuang 144 250 - - 13,263 - 13,657
ERBEE Mr. Cui Tongzheng 144 150 - 4 4912 2 5212
Begns Mr. Yan Jianhua 144 150 - - 1,965 - 2,259
RESE Mr. Zhang Jian 144 - - - 196 - 340
BIFHTES Independent Non-executive
Directors
TRIBRE Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 233 - - - - - 233
e Mr. Liu Yi 144 - - - - - 144
ERREE Mr. Yue Run Dong 144 - - - - - 144
1,385 800 - 4 33,403 2 35,594

@) #=5m8m07 | —e—=5r4
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BZE2012812A3BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

11. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

014
2011

g
KT i3 A Ui

e e () a8t <ffx EtEh @t
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
Equity-settled
Pension  share-based
Discretionary scheme payment Other
Fees Salary  bonus (Note)  contributions expenses benefits Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HITES Executive Directors

RERLE Mr. Zhang Jianhong 138 6,000 6,385 - 10,507 - 23,030
BERE Mr. Fu kiwan 138 - - - - - 138
fEsrs Mr. Liu Chuang 138 6,000 5110 - 10,665 = 21913
ERREL Mr. Cui Tongzheng 138 2400 1059 3 3,950 - 7550
PEERL Mr. Yan Jianhua 138 1,000 162 - 1580 - 2880
RESE Mr. Zhang Jian 138 - - - 158 - 29

BUHTES Independent Non-executive

Directors

TRERHE Mr.Ting Leung Huel, Stephen 24 - - - - - 24
e Mr. Liu Yi 138 - - - - - 138
EEREE Mr. Yue Run Dong 138 - - - - - 138
1328 15400 12,716 3 26,360 = 56,307

MisE - BISEADREREARREE

RERFEMBARNBITREE - EXFH
BH N BRI ERITRAARIRH RIS
B -

FR - AEETERNESKAEERFTALT
XS AR E N A KBS EAMAR
SENRSEHBMHE MEXTETHASR
SREMEEREEE2012F12831H IERE
FENEMAE -

Note: Discretionary bonus is determined based on the individual performance of the
directors.

Mr. Zhang Jianhong is also the Chief Executive of the Company and
his emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chief Executive.

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the directors waived any
emoluments for the two years ended 31 December 2012.
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12. {2 & % 12. Employees’ emoluments
AEBREERFATESR =4 (201 Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
F:=ZF) BARAESE  EFMER LEX three (2011:three) were directors of the Company whose emoluments
MIsER R - M (20114 : @A) are included in the disclosures in note 11 above. The emoluments of
R ATHE BT the remaining two (2011: two) individuals were as follows:

20124 20114
ARETR ARETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
e Salary 300 400
IETEAL Discretionary bonus - 5,244
RIRETEI AR Pension scheme contributions 12 6
PRIEAEE 2 AR SIBASE  Equity-settled share-based payment expenses 7,073 4,740
7,385 10,390
EEFHMNFLATAER : Their emoluments were within the following bands:
20124 20114
2012 2011
EEAR No. of employees
AR #3,0000017TE RMB3,000,001 to RMB3,500,000
AR #3,500,0007C 1 _
AR #4,0000017TE RMB4,000,001 to RMB4,500,000
AR #4,500,0007T 1 _
AR #5,000,0007TE RMB5,000,000 to RMB5,500,000
AR #5,500,0007T - 2

113 BEZLETUCIEE BEL S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZE2012812A3BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

13. Earnings per share

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

20124 20114F
¥ +
2012 2011
‘000 ‘000
ERREAR REEE R T Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted
s &4 (ARE) earnings per share (RMB) 713,056 2,189,861
HRERERBNME EBE Weighted average number of ordinary shares
I8 for the purpose of basic earnings per share 2,120,552 2,110,240
HeEETERNTE Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
i Share options - 7,259
AREREERNME EBA  Weighted average number of ordinary shares
INEE T8 for purpose of diluted earnings per share 2,120,552 2,117,499

HARARREZE2012F12A431BIEFE AR
TERERENTEER NG FHAME - &
SFEEHZE2012F12A831H IEFERNEREE
BRI BRSNS T2 SRR -

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2012 does not assume the exercise of certain of the
Company's outstanding share options as the exercise prices of those
options are higher than the average market price of the shares
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

B 14. Dividends
20125 201148
ARETT ARETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
FABIRMNAORE Dividends paid during the year:
201 1EERHEARR S+ AR0400 2011 final dividend: HK$0.400
PB7T (20114F 1 20105 R HA (2011: 2010 final dividend: HK$0.135)
B8+ BA%0.135%47T) per share 690,876 235,697

HZE2012F12A31HILFE - EFEEZEL
275,672,0007% 70 (5 J%0.130% 7T) 2 7K BB A%
B QONE : HE20MFNRANBILEFEZ
RERRZ B 5848,221,00075 7T (FHE R AR
690,876,0007T) (FPR0.400757L)) + AR
BAY FRERERE

A final dividend of HK$0.130 per share, amounting to approximately
HKS$275,672,000in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011:
final dividend of HK$848,221,000 (HK$0.400 per share), equivalent to
RMB690,876,000, in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011)
has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in general meeting.
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15. Y13 - BB R RE

15. Property, plant and equipment

BF BERRE RE FZRREE HEIE Mat
ARETT AREBTIT AREBTT AREBTT AREBTT AREBTT
Plant and Motor Furniture Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles and fittings in progress Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% COST
20111818 At1January 2011 867,498 3,871,161 25,770 187,941 474102 5426472
RE Additions 67,473 261,958 15216 13,873 488,819 847,339
i Transfer 147,585 712,965 = 22,938 (883,488) =
o 5 R ER Eliminated on disposals (10,541) (146,130) (1,259) (1,926) 71) (160,027)
720114128318 At 31 December 2011 1072015 4,699,954 39,727 222,826 79262 6,113,784
NE Additions 82,423 159,275 1,847 17,555 342,406 603,506
R Transfer 30,109 182,953 - 24,620 (237,682) -
o R Eliminated on disposals (245) (52,517) (894) - - (53,656)
720124124318 At 31 December 2012 1184302 4,989,665 40,680 265,001 183986 6,663,634
ZiHE ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
B20118E1 818 At1January 2011 158,483 1,325,831 12,461 107,303 - 1,604,078
REERST Charge for the year 50,847 420,970 4,825 29,776 - 506,418
£ B B 8 Eliminated on disposals (3,401) (85,192) (681) (699) = (89,973)
20114128318 At 31 December 2011 205,929 1,661,609 16,605 136,380 - 2020523
REERE Charge for the year 52,411 465,941 6,175 30,961 = 555,488
o 5 R ER Eliminated on disposals (60) (33,024) (737) = = (33,821)
720124128318 At 31 December 2012 258280 2,094,526 22,043 167,341 - 2542190
REE CARRYING VALUES
720124128318 At 31 December 2012 926022 2,895,139 18,637 97,660 183986 4,121,444
720114128318 At 31 December 2011 866,086 3,038,345 23,122 86,446 79262 4093261

R2012F12A318 » AEEMNE TEF

RMIEFERE
104,641,0007T (20115712 A31H

99,364,0007T,) °

CREFENSARE
AR %

120 BT ETUCIEE BEL IS

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has not obtained the building

ownership certificates for certain buildings with net carrying values of
approximately RMB104,641,000 (31 December 2011: RMB99,364,000).



15. Y15 ~ #RRERAE (F)
W - HIERRBRAEREN TG
AIE A BTN E - BEAAREFI
B -

BF 20F S FHE (AR E A2%)
WX NEE 5108
RE 54

BMEEE  S5F

AEEBEERFERAEINABHOARE
6,594,0007C (20114E12A31H : A R ¥
6,801,0007T) M A K #678229,0007T (20114
128318 + AR¥E1,531,027,0007T) HUIEF -
WL EE  AAEEBRTERREMER
{ERHR -

BFANFE L ERRIETIHRERS

16. FENHEE
AREHENBEBREFENAHTMT :

ERE SRR M R
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZE2012812A3BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

15. Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their cost less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings Shorter of 20 years or the terms of lease
Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Furniture and fittings 5 years

The Group has pledged buildings and plant and machinery with
carrying amount of approximately RMB6,594,000 (31 December
2011: RMB6,801,000) and RMB678,229,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB1,531,027,000), respectively, to secure bank loans and other loans
of the Group.

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC and held under
medium-term lease.

16. Prepaid lease payments

The Group's prepaid lease payments are analysed for reporting
purpose as follows:

2012 20114
ARETR AREBFT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
AWEBFTERDITIIT © Analysed for reporting purpose as:
— BNERER > — Current portion 10,909 17,404
— FEBNERER D ~ Non-current portion 379,533 638,597
390,442 656,001

% & B  BABA20 = 50F By P HA b {8
%

BN B AES o HATEE 4 iy - Hb 5 R 4
B 1 S A~ A R #5495,0007T (2011412 A31
B AR#432,5650007T) ARt SN 0 &K
EEERSEM Tt RERS -

The amounts represent the medium-term land use rights situated in
the PRC for a period of 20 to 50 years.

Other than prepaid lease payment of RMB495,000 (31 December
2011: RMB432,565,000) which the Group is in the process of obtaining
the land use right certificate for the medium-term leasehold land,
other land use right certificates have already been secured.
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16. EMNHEE (&)

N E B R BR E 2 E 4 A K #566,438,000
THENES  AAEEEMERERR
(2011%F12 4318 + A R #¥71,387,0000T * A
RITREMEFRIEER) o

REZE20126128318IEEE - AEEES
A AR 3584140007t AL A BIILERE
BAENMIETEAELERRZEEME
(Ff7E22) °

16. Prepaid lease payments (Continued)

The Group has pledged prepaid lease payments with the aggregate
carrying amount of approximately RMB66,438,000 to secure other
loans (31 December 2011: RMB71,387,000 for bank and other loans)
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group transferred an
amount of RMB358,414,000 representing two parcels of lands located
in Huantai Shandong, the PRC to properties under development for
sale (note 22).

17. B EE

17. Intangible assets

EERM B RiEE st
AREFIT ARETIT AREFT AREFT
Proprietary Exploration
technologies Software rights Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2% COST
R2011F1 1B R At 1 January 2011 and
20114128318 31 December 2011 21,308 78 = 21,386
NE Additions 3,743 18 80,000 83,761
2012612318 At 31 December 2012 25,051 % 80,000 105,147
#eH AMORTISATION
R220114E1A18  At1 January 2011 18,022 12 - 18,034
RFERZ Charge for the year 2,087 12 - 2,099
2011412 H318 At 31 December 2011 20,109 24 = 20,133
REFERX Charge for the year 527 12 - 539
20129 12H31H At 31 December 2012 20,636 36 - 20,672
BRE{E CARRYING VALUES
20126124318 At 31 December 2012 4,415 60 80,000 84,475
20114124318 At 31 December 2011 1,199 54 = 1,253

©) ==rmannn | —e-—=xrp
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S = . .
Br&EE (&) 17. Intangible assets (Continued)
AEEFMEEFLEEHNRNE=SEE ° All of the Group's intangible assets were acquired from third parties.
BERM R BRI Z A EER AR Proprietary technologies and computer software licences have
FREH - WIZRERED RIRSFEE10F K36 definite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis over 5
ZE5FHEE o to 10 years and 3 to 5 years respectively.
20124 - ZNE [ BAKRR (B A K #80,000,000 During 2012, the Group acquired exploration rights of two mines
TLIAIE = F W R AS & B8R R ERER from third parties in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region in the PRC
PRIERE o RS PA2013F 2 HA - AR FE for a total consideration of RMB80 million. The exploration rights will
R ANEE B AB N AR E R A expire in 2013 and in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
B EPFIE B IRERE o the Group will be able to renew the exploration rights with the
relevant government authority continuously at insignificant cost.
ARARIESEH - ZFRUNELERFEE The directors of the Company expected that the mines are abundant
BE  MEARAEBRRHEBNEEZR with fluorspar resources, which is a major raw material for the
AL o WEERZ 1R L I AR B RE A S A refrigerant business of the Group. The acquisition of the mines will
RNEFIENEEEREREE - RIREH enable the Group to secure a reliable supply of high-quality fluorspar
R ANEEEEETEL SRR ENER resources at a reasonable cost. At the end of the reporting period,
NEEEERERSE  EMERREEEE the Group is in the process in finalizing an independent exploration
RTEUS ERAEREE (TREARSPA201345F NS ) © report to reasonably ascertain the mine reserves in order to obtain
the mining right certificates which are expected to be obtained in
2013 before commencing commercial production.
= Qs — a2 q o
R—XEE R RN ER 18. Interest in an associate
20125 20114F
AR¥T T ARETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
KA —KIEEMEEEAT  Cost of investment in an associate unlisted
HIRE AR in the PRC 1,470 980
FEMGUEE R R (BE) - Share of post-acquisition profit (Ioss)
HERE WA E net of dividends received 123 (201)
1,593 779
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18. R—REtE AR ER () 18. Interest in an associate (Continued)
720124F FR20114F12 H31H » AEEHZE A The details of the Group’s associate at 31 December 2012 and 2011
AIEEFIBELAT are as follows:
FEE
TE Fis BEH Bt
BERER EBEEL RYER EXWE  ROER aMEER RERELG FEEK
% %
Registered
Form of Principal capital  Proportion
business Country of placeof  Class of held by of voting
Name of entity structure establishment operation share held the Group  power held Principal activity
% %
RELFRETME  BRDA e FE E 2 49 49 BLERIHEE
ERBRAA
(MEARED
Chifeng North Dongyue  Limited liability ~ PRC PRC Registered 49 49 Production and
New Material company capital sales of salt
Development Co,, Ltd.
(“North Dongyue”)
1201128188 AR AIMMTBRARIAR On 18 February 2011, Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak Fluorine
ERESBEICIARARE-—BEIE= Chemicals Co. Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
FEIM R - KAZIE A RE o REE20124 agreement with an independent third party to establish North
2ANBIEFE b RENFMERBA Dongyue. During the year ended 31 December 2012, North Dongyue
R #2,000,0007T 12 10 Z= A & #3,000,0007T increased its registered capital from RMB2,000,000 to RMB3,000,000
NN &R Bz A iR R LE il Rl 3k 75 SR E AR AN and the Group injected an additional capital of RMB490,000 in North
&R AR #490,0007T © PA2012612H318 - Dongyue in proportion to its equity interest. As at 31 December 2012,
REERIL T REFRFH49% (20114 : 49%) the Group holds 49% (2011:49%) equity interest in North Dongyue
fHE - WHIRAIRER — KBk E R AIH# and accounts for the investment as interest in an associate.

o

B
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18. R—XBE N RN ER (&) 18. Interest in an associate (Continued)
IRAR R B 5 R 5 A R U AN SR BB i The summarised financial information prepared under IFRSs in

19.

AN ERBEEESIT

respect of the Group's associate is set out below:

20126 20114F

ARETT AREFIT

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB'000

BEE Total assets 5,680 4,780
wam Total liabilities 2,430 3,191
EEFE Net assets 3,250 1,589
AEEEEEEFE Net assets attributable to the Group 1,593 779
Wz Revenue 6,891 704

B8N B A FE( Profit (loss) for the year attributable to owner

FRmAl (EE) of the associate 661 411)
REE RS (EE) Group's share of profit (Ioss) 324 (201)

AHHERE 19. Available-for-sale investments
20124 20114F
ARBT AREBFT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEEMAATE S - #AAFIER  Unlisted equity securities, at cost
— IIREFREER - Shandong Innovation Investment Co,, Ltd.
BRRA (FfiEa) (Note a) 2,324 2324
— MEREERNEER ~ Zibo ZhangDian Huitong Microfinance
BRAAF (Hizta) Co, Ltd. (Note a) 26,453 26,453
— IUR¥SEERBERE — Shandong Peninsula Ocean Blue
BR T (FifiEb) Economic Investment Co, Ltd. (Note b) 89,401 51,729
118,178 80,506
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19. AMEHERE ()

EaiIE EMRERENRILAB B RAR
B REEHRERARERERTE - RE
EREAFENGBESEA  AEARFE
ERAREDNTERESEIE

BE

EERAEPEFMATINLAEE - A&EEH
BRI R BIF I E EAR AR A 7 KOS HREE
NEEE AR AR F9.9%K10.71%H) iR AN 1

%
i)
B
3¢

b. ZEBRATHSHSEMAIHOLAETE - ©X
201F - AARBEILRFLESEELEEREFRA
Al (EEERE ] I REWE - 52820000000
B EE B IR A I - MR20125E12A318 © RAFIA
X {814,000,000% 7T (18 & 7 49 A K 89,401,000
JC) (2011412 A31H : 8,000,000.003% 7T (8 & »
# A R #51,729,0007T)) R B#14,000,0008% A% 15
(BESMABREERECKRENREHRR) (2011
#12A31H : 80000008% i 1) * (& &% & K
7N FE 25 H918.18% (20114F : 18.18%) » W & & T
6,000,000f% A& 2 1§ IR EE 18R B E ERFAAE
HBIEL - BARFWERFIEHLEMES -

20. JEFER A
BB ORISR AT

19. Available-for-sale investments (Continued)

The above unlisted investments represent equity investments in

private entities. They are measured at cost less impairment at the

end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair

value estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company

are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Notes:

The entities are private entities that were incorporated in the PRC. The
Group holds 9.9% and 10.71% of the equity interests in Shandong Innovation
Investment Co., Ltd. and Zibo ZhangDian Huitong Microfinance Co., Ltd.,
respectively.

The entity is a private entity that was incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
During 2011, the Company entered into a subscription agreement with
Shandong Peninsula Ocean Blue Economic Investment Co., Ltd. (“SPOBE") to
subscribe 20,000,000 shares in SPOBE. As at 31 December 2012, the Company
has subscribed 14,000,000 shares (which was contributed in accordance
with each investor's equity interests in SPOBE) (31 December 2011: 8,000,000
shares) for the consideration of US$14,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB89,401,000) (31 December 2011: US$8,000,000.00 (equivalent to
approximately RMB51,729,000)) which represents 18.18% (2011: 18.18%) equity
interests in SPOBE. The acquisition of the remaining 6,000,000 shares will take
place upon receipt of notice from the major shareholders of SPOBE. Details of
the capital commitment referred to note 31.

20. Deferred taxation

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

reporting purpose:

20124 201148

AR¥T T AREFIT

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB'000

FIEFIAE B Deferred tax assets 116,221 132,308
BEFIBAE Deferred tax liabilities (42,611) (99,865)
73,610 32,443
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

20. Deferred taxation (Continued)

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised

HEsnT : and movements thereon for the year:
HE WESER
MEAR ERE
G BEEN EAHEN  RRED
AEN  FERE  BEGER  BARM  BUEER EAGAR BEER Afts Azt
ARETL ARETR ARBTR ARMTT ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:
Tax
credits on
acquisition
Government  of qualified
Distributable Accrualfor ~ grantson  property,
profits of PRC  Deprecation  employee prepaidlease  plant,and  Capitalised
subsidiaries  allowance benefits ~ payments  equipment interests  Tax losses Others Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BREREEE Deferred tax asset (iability)
(Bf)
RONE1AIR At 1 January 2011 (39,199) 7812 37,763 35525 9902 (10684) = 9,584 50,703
EfREEMF  Dividend withholding tax paid 17575 - - - - - - - 17575
wEE (k) (Charge) credit recognised
A () in profitor loss (Note 9) (70440) 1221 55997 (16114) 9503 2883 - 121 (35,839)
20115128318 At31 December 2011 (92,064) 9033 93,760 19411 399 (7.801) = 9,705 32443
EffREFEMNE  Dividend withholding tax paid 78,061 - - - - - - - 78,061
REE (k) (Charge) credit recognised
itA (9 in profitor loss (Note 9) (22053) 640 (29179) 10622 (133 1246 4408 (2449) (36,894)
R20124128318  At31 December 2012 (36,056) 9673 64581 30033 266 (6555) 4408 760 73610
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20. EZENHIE (&) 20. Deferred taxation (Continued)
2012612 H4318 - A & & 7] A 1E & 88 At 31 December 2012, the Group has unused tax losses of
AR RERABREBELNRARE approximately RMB272,785,000 (31 December 2011: RMB150,744,000)
272,785,0007T (2011412H31H : A R available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has
#150,74400070) c E R EF AH AR been recognised in respect of RMB17,633,000 (31 December 2011: nil)
17,633,0007C (20114F12 8318 : &) K E518 of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation
HRELHIBEE - AR THREAEEEE to such unused tax losses as it is uncertain whether taxable profit of
BEHYFE R A N2 5 1] AR E) AR E IR the corresponding group entities will be available against which the
0 A ERZE RS AR IEEIERER unused tax losses can be utilised. Included in unrecognised tax losses
REFIHEE - AERTIHGEBEERE are losses of approximately RMB150,063,000 and RMB105,089,000
49 A R #150,063,0007T & A R #105,089,000 that will expire in 2016 and 2017 respectively (31 December 2011:
TC 0 9 Bl 720165 K&20174F E H3 (2011 RMB14,834,000 and RMB135910,000 will expire in 2015 and 2016
F128318 © AR ™148340007T & AR respectively).
135910,0007T # 73 Bl 722015F K&20165F %
) o
BIBECPBEPERETE)  PBEMEA Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
A) 20084 1 A1 B B RER A 5 7 2R A AR B declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
BURTER o &R & B 75 RER 9 A it A 25 B January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided
B AR R &L AR 2015217,0007T for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
(20114F128318 + A &R %1,646,171,0007T) differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
SR EHETIRELCHIEEE  RER approximately amounting to RMB2,015,217.000 (31 December 2011:
AREEH R DI GIE by =R AR RIRE - m RMB1,646,171,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
TR ERARATRE N R AT B 2R o reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
AEEWEEMBENREHBEEERARE ° The Group has no other significant deferred tax asset and liability.
21. & 21. Inventories
20124 201146
ARBTT ARETT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
JRH# K E R dn Raw materials and consumables 221,519 300,758
TE& Work in progress 66,779 77,894
UK Finished goods 236,628 270,004
et Total 524,926 648,656
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EHERBRZHEEYR

ZMEREERBE RETYROMIE LR
YE - BRTEREER EEFBRRETETH
& RFEHRUNTELUREESR - RIE
REBEORSA -

REZE2012F12831B ILFE - AEEERE
EBARTEMEYE  BEEEREEEES
BARBEEBPIHE - 1% - REEAARK
358414,0007C ) T b A F A B TE L (T
it16) MAEHER G ZERYE -

ZEMBNERTIRES AR BEEH
TEET B ERR AFATEA ° 72012612 H31
B (EEEREZEZYENEAENAR
#108,136,0007T (20114F : =) ARSI RS
BRBET T —E AR T -

FE W BRI EL At B W SR IR

ERE SRR M R
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZE2012812A3BILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2012

22. Properties under development for sale

The amount represents two parcels of land and properties being
developed into residential properties for sale in the ordinary course
of business upon completion. Those parcels of land are situated in
Huantai Shandong, the PRC and held under a long lease.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group's management
decided to develop properties and the relevant development plan
had been approved by relevant authority in the PRC. Following
that, the land with the carrying amount of RMB358,414,000 was
transferred from prepaid lease payments (note 16) to properties
under development for sale during the year.

The construction work for land is divided into five phases, and the
whole project is expected to be completed in the coming five years.
At 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of properties under
development for sale of approximately RMB108,136,000 (2011: nil) are
expected to be completed within twelve months from the end of
reporting period.

23. Trade and other receivables

20124 20114F

ARET T ARETIT

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB'000

FEUBR SR Trade receivables 798,764 1,316,164

o REREE S Less: allowance for doubtful debts (8,304) (2,924)

790,460 1,313,240

R EE N FIE Prepayment for raw materials 59,230 123,813

FEUURERE Value added tax receivables 34,096 65417
®’E - FARFIEREM Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

FEWIFRIR 10,405 14,264

894,191 1,516,734

JE U BE TR B FE 72012612 A31H E A BRI
453,327,0007C 2 & Y & (20114812 431
B : AR%1,122,200,0007T) °

AEBRTFTREFZEREREER KA
DH0R - EUREE — M A90H M EK180H
WE|H - IRIEEE = HE] (JrE YR asfEsd B 8
HE) AEERIRE B RER 2 EUWERR
(FBRREREHE) MERERDIT2HIA0T -

Included in the trade receivables are bills receivables amounting
to RMB453,327000 at 31 December 2012 (31 December 2011
RMB1,122,200,000).

Customers are generally granted with credit period of less than
90 days for trade receivables. Bills receivables are generally due
in 90 days or 180 days. The following is an aging analysis of trade
receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts, presented based on
the invoice date, also approximate the date of revenue recognition,
which are recognised by the Group at the end of the reporting
period.
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23. EWRA R H A EWGKIE ()

23. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

201245 20114

ARBTT AREFTT

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB'000

90HR Within 90 days 582,142 816,100
91HZE180H 91-180 days 192,914 490,860
181H =365H 181-365 days 15,404 6,254
1226 1to 2 years - 26
790,460 1,313,240

EAEERFMERA - ARBEERENES
NEEBRTHEEEPHNEEERNRER
PRIEREE - TP 8ERAEREERTR
FEEZMIR 2 96% (20114 : 99%) K18 Hf
MARBEZ YRR E R EBAENRITE
R - AEBBRTEFEHEE AR
BERHSIEERE -

AEBZREWESEHRBELERBERA
R #29,730,0007T (20118128318 :« ARE
6,545,0007C) Z IR - R¥E B BB aEm
ANE B R E R EEEELRE - A5E
WARFE I F 4 R E S I ERSE FAIEAR -

Before accepting any new customer, the Group conducts research
on the creditworthiness of the new customer and assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed
twice a year. 96% (2011: 99%) of the trade receivables that are neither
past due nor impaired have the high ranking record attributable
under the research on the creditworthiness. The Group offers various
settlement terms which vary depending on the size of contract,
credibility and reputation of the customers.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with the
aggregate carrying amount of RMB29,730,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB6,545,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does
not hold any collateral or credit enhancements over these balances.

20124 201148

ARMT AREBFT

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB'000

91HZE180H 91-180 days 15,059 6,102
181HZ=365H 181-365 days 14,671 405
1226 1-2 years - 38
29,730 6,545
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23. BERERFI R EMEUWFIE (&) 23. Trade and other receivables (Continued)

HRRBEEANEEE R LA RAZENIE Allowance of the above amount has not been made by the Group
ATYgE - REE R il S RRiR i - as there has not been a significant change in the credit quality and
ARREFRAZENEREBRIFEES the amounts are still considered recoverable. The directors of the
e Company consider they are in good credit quality.
REERESH Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
20125 20114F
AR¥TT ARETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
FAEEER Balance at beginning of the year 2,924 3416
R (EE) EKERTORE Recognition (reversal) of impairment on
trade receivables 5,380 (492)
FIREEGR Balance at end of the year 8,304 2,924
VA_E B B AR AT BE U E] Y FE Uk BR ZR 89 Rk The above allowance represents impairment for trade receivables
8- which are considered not recoverable.
LA S E BB 8B AN BT (E The Group's account receivables that are denominated in currencies
B SR B AR R DA T other the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set
out below:
EPH
:F
uss$
‘000
20124124311 As at 31 December 2012 36,756
72011412 A318 As at 31 December 2011 15,508
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24,

25.

ZEER 24. Entrusted loans
20125 201148
ARETT ARET T
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
ZEER (M) Entrusted loans (Note) 400,000 403,000

fEE © RR2012F 12 A3 AMERIEM SR B FE =751k
H ) AR #400,000,0007T (201145128318 : AR
#£403,0000007T) ZrEE R @ HR BIEERRLE
£ AR %300,000,0007T (20114F12A31H : AR¥E
403,000,0007T) RS —BBILE=FHRMDIE
AHEIRE) A R#100,000,0007T (20114E12A318 -
T) o ZIEZ T EFIRE T F F E102%F12%
(20114F : 7.8%%12%) 1 BITHER —FAE|H -

REBBRMNEBSAR - SRFEBANE
AR ETHR - W HEEEFSANER
EZRATEBANGE LR o NEBERME
TRBRIGK - BEGRARESLHBE (7
T A R #20,000,0007T = A & #100,000,000
70 (20114 + A R #13,000000C & A R ¥
80,000,0007T) &) - EBAREREE R
EEMEE - BRGNS BRI KR8 H
OB - EEFEEELE = 8RR
M WAMHRER BB RIEREKE ©

EERBITHERBITHERR
BE

BREMNEZEREERNBEPRITEROAEA
R #20,570,0007T (2011£€E128318 : AR
4340,0007T) * B D EEARENEE ©

BIRARITERFRITESR IR SR ZEF
KET B o BIRRITERMRTEHRRIA
20124512 A31 B B INHE 1 BRI XK 5 Rl
/52.80% (20114F : 330%) £20.35% (20114 :
0.50%) °

©) ==rmannn | —e-—==rp

25.

Note: The balance represents entrusted loans to several independent third parties

amounting to RMB400,000,000 at 31 December 2012 (31 December 2011:
RMB403,000,000), which include unsecured balances of RMB300,000,000
(31 December 2011: RMB403,000,000) and secured by shares of another
independent third party of RMB100,000,000 (31 December 2011:nil). The
entrusted loans bear fixed interest ranging from 10.2% to 12% (2011: 7.8% to
12%) per annum with maturity of one year.

Before accepting any new debtor, the Group conducts research on
the creditworthiness of the new debtor and assesses the potential
debtor’s credit quality and defines credit limits by debtor. The Group
offers various settlement terms which vary depending on the
size of contract, ranging from RMB20,000,000 to RMB100,000,000
(2011: RMB13,000,000 to RMB80,000,000) credibility and reputation
of the debtor. Loans balances are not past due or impaired at the
end of reporting period. The directors continuously evaluate the
creditworthiness of the independent third parties and may, on a case
by case basis, extend the repayment date on mutual agreement.

Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and
cash

Pledged bank deposits amounting to approximately RMB20,570,000
(31 December 2011: RMB4,340,000) have been pledged to secure the
bills payables and are therefore classified as current assets.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash carry variable
interest rate. The weighted average effective interest rates on
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash as at 31
December 2012 were 2.80% (2011: 3.30%) and 0.35% (2011: 0.50%)
respectively.



25. BIEFRITER RITEHRRK
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25. Pledged bank deposits/bank balances and
cash (Continued)

The Group's bank balances that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set
out below:

EH
:F
us$
‘000
72012412 A31H As at 31 December 2012 14,137
20114 12H318 As at 31 December 2011 21,249
= =
26. FE{TERF N H At B FRIE 26. Trade and other payables

20124 20114F
ARBTT ARETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEATBR X Trade payables 590,809 505,832
TAWE P RRIE Receipt in advance from customers 60,254 71147
FEAT B T BN (Pt 5Ea) Payroll payable (Note a) 288,288 368,613
COMIA B B3R (Mi5Eb)  Payable for CDM project (Note b) 146,047 102,219

W - R MREBENTIE  Ppayable for property, plant and equipment
(Bf=Ee) (Note c) 148,476 149,855
H AR Other tax payables 17,211 35,672
H et R SRR Other payables and accruals 74,405 77,465
#EEt Total 1,325,490 1,310,803

B3 Notes:

@) M20126F12 8318 - BRNBIFMEE—RAR @) As at 31 December 2012, included in the payroll payable is a provision for

KB A A 8 THHRESEEL AR71,321,000
7 (20114F12A318 « AR#68,259,0007T) © #E
SHEEAEETEHBRARIEENZELRES
EE 0 DIRERBEBEERARETE - WIREHE
LAAHREE R E - HIREH T EEER —FET
HIE  AELOREIHRBEFERME TR

social insurance fund for employees of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to approximately RMB71,321,000 (31 December 2011: RMB68,259,000). The
amount of the provision represents the Group’s entire obligation for social
insurance fund for employees of PRC subsidiaries and is determined based
on the relevant national regulations on social insurance and calculated based
on the basic counting unit multiplied by the social insurance rate. The basic
counting unit for social insurance shall be the average wages of an employee in
the preceding year and shall not be less than the minimum limit promulgated
by the local social insurance bureau each year.
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26. BN R EMEAKE (H)

(b) 1B 1% BARRR AR - COMIE B B065%FT 15 338 Th
BRAEBFFAE AN E B R K A BT IRER

ZEBP ©

©  KEmE - EBRREENENTOREIE SRR
BRETRE=FEARN » AR AREEZFTA
FIRERETIR

FEMER R BIER2012F12831BZEARE
30,730,0007C (20114F12831H : A R ¥
9,700,0007T) Z BN RIE - BN EHEARE
B/ e EKARRITERIERER -

REEmrFIEEMR0R - REEEF]
FIEEMEREREEBOR - ARERATA B
RENEEHRABE -

REZZEH - BNRAORED 2510

26. Trade and other payables (Continued)

(b) According to the relevant PRC regulation, 65% of the proceeds from CDM
project belong to PRC government and the Group has collected this portion
on behalf of the PRC government.

(© The payable for acquisition of property, plant and equipment will be settled
three months after the completion of installation of the plant and machinery
which is recorded in the addition of construction in progress during the year.

Included in the trade payables are bills payables amounting
to RMB30,730,000 at 31 December 2012 (31 December 2011:
RMB9,700,000). Bills payables were secured by the Group's pledged
bank deposits.

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that

all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

The following is an analysis of trade payables by age, presented

T based on invoice date:
20125 20114
ARBTT AREETFIT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
308 A Within 30 days 423,757 247,853
31HZ%90H 31-90 days 70,257 144,539
91H£180H 91-180 days 62,326 77,483
181H%E365H 181-365 days 15,724 20,360
1FEF2EF 1-2 years 8,678 6,901
HaiB2F More than 2 years 10,067 8,696
590,809 505,832

FERTER B S —TH FE T BT BB A B SEIE AR AR 3R
BR 4 A R #5464,0007T (20114128318 -
AR #2,164,0007T) - BREL TH 308 A © 1§
ZRHEZEER—RA=Z/NEA -

3¢ BEZLETUCIEE BELES

Included in the trade payables is a trade payable to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary amounting to approximately RMB464,000
(31 December 2011: RMB2,164,000) which are aged within 30 days.
The general credit period given by them is three to six months.
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27. Borrowings
20124 20114F
AR¥T T ARETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
EHRRITER Unsecured bank loans 1,629,949 1,716,500
BEMRITER Secured bank loans 140,725 376,360
BEFEAMBER Secured other loan 141,424 178,226
1,912,098 2,271,086
AR AT IR AEERIRREIE ¢ Carrying amount repayable:
1R Within one year 774,302 894,578
I FETBBE2F More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 748,085 677,789
Z P F B ERRSF More than two years, but not more than
five years 389,711 698,719
1,912,098 2,271,086
B FIRREBE THIFA  Less: Amount due within one year shown
B HARIR under current liabilities 774,302 894,578
1F1&EIHARIA Amount due after one year 1,137,796 1,376,508

20128128318 © A R #140,725,0007TC
(20118128318 « AR #376,360,0007C) K

As at 31 December 2012, secured bank loans of RMB140,725,000

EEBRTEXBAIEERARENAR
#477,911,0007C (2011F12831H : A R ¥
1316,701,0007T) BB F « #28 R R A K&
REEARAEAZT (Q01F12A31H: AR
2,941,0007T) WIBNHESIEREKR - ZFH
WIRRITE IR F B6.65% (20114 © 504%
E7.42%) 5T B °

(31 December 2011: RMB376,360,000) were secured by the Group’s
buildings and plant and machinery with the aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB477911,000 (31 December 2011
RMB1,316,701,000) and prepaid lease payments with the aggregate
carrying amount of nil (31 December 2011: RMB2,941,000). The
secured bank loans carry interest is 6.65% (2011:5.04% to 7.42%) per
annum.
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27. 8 (&)

27. Borrowings (Continued)

F20126F12A318 - B — R gt 18 1E L
B A 3 E i B R I {8 B22,550,000%
7T (H B R A R 14142400078 ) (20114
128318 : 28125000k Tt (HHE R AR
178,226,00070)) * BASBEREBENAR
#5206,912,0007T (20114F12A318 : AR ¥
221 12700071) RIETF - MR R REU KRR

48 E 4 A R #66,438,0007T (20114127
31E| © AR #68,446,0000T) W TERT £ 1E
BER - ZZBEFIRMBERTRERF 2 M
FE3%TE o FA - REBEREHEERD
T RERBFERZ A A A REES067,0007T
(20114F = AR™6,919,0007T) ©

MR T E R Z B E B6I5%ET7.76%
(20114 : 5.40%i7.59%) °

As at 31 December 2012, secured other loan made by a financial
institution represents borrowings of US$22,550,000 (equivalent
RMB141,424,000) (31 December 2011: US$28,125,000 (equivalent
RMB178,226,000)), which was secured by the Group's buildings
and plant and machinery with the aggregate carrying amount of
approximately RMB206,912,000 (31 December 2011: RMB221,127,000)
and prepaid lease payments with the aggregate carrying amount of
approximately RMB66,438,000 (31 December 2011: RMB68,446,000).
The loan carries interest at LIBOR+3% per annum. During the year,
interest expense of approximately RMB5,067,000 (2011: RMB6,919,000)
is paid and payable by the Group in relation to the loan.

The unsecured bank loans carry interest ranging from 6.15% to 7.76%
(2011: 5.40% to 7.59%) per annum.

AEBESBERRRESQOINEA (HEH The exposures of the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and the
EER) AR : contractual maturity dates (or repricing dates) are as follows:
20124 20114F
ARBT T ARBFIT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
ELEE Fixed-rate borrowings
14F Within one year 57,000 75,000
S FEDBRF In more than one year but not more than
two years 176,250 30,000
233,250 105,000
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h=d = . a
27. B8 (&) 27. Borrowings (Continued)
IEoN - AEBEZSEERHINAT In addition, the Group has following variable-rate borrowings:
12012%12A831H Loan amount as at
HE K FlZ= 31 December 2012 Interest rate
ARH1537,424000T  IZEE AR RMB1,537,424,000 Standard lending rate plus 0% to 15%
HN0%Z 15%
AER#141,424,0007T RBERITRIZENRE RMB141,424,000 LIBOR plus 3%
AN3%
7M2011%12A831H Loan amount as at
HE R Fl= 31 December 2011 Interest rate
AR#1,987,8600007T  IZEEFFE RMB1,987,860,000 Standard lending rate plus 0% to 10%
AN0%ZE10%
AR #178,226,0007C RBERITRIZENR B RMB178,226,000 LIBOR plus 3%
hn3%
EEGRMNEEPEARIETHEM  2EF The standard lending rate is promulgated by the People’s Bank of
RAR G GBERTRIZEREIZFEARRT China. Both the standard lending rate and LIBOR will be repriced
R E TR ERETEBHOEEN RS when there is a change in the borrowing rate promulgated by the
HHEME o People’s Bank of China and LIBOR from time to time.
MEE3EZ1NEAEHREE Interest is repriced every 3 to 12 months.
ERRMER (BERYTEFR) RN : The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to

contracted interest rates) are as follows:

2012% 201148
2012 2011

BERF= Effective interest rate:
EEEE Fixed-rate borrowings 6.15% to 6.65% 6.41% to 6.65%
EEEE Variable-rate borrowings 3.74% to 7.76% 3.39% to 7.59%
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27. 8 (&) 27.

ER S E BRI EE AN BRI E
MAKEEESHIIMT

Borrowings (Continued)

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set
out below:

EY

:F

Uss$

‘000

#R20124F12A31H As at 31 December 2012 22,550
20115128318 As at 31 December 2011 28,125

FR - AEERS 25 A AR K142,000,000
gt (20114F12 8318 : A R #270,500,000
TU) M EKEEHEBTER  @EAA
R ¥663,000,0007T (20114128318 : A R
#£820,000,0007T) HY & K R & BA R 17 B ;K
UK&5E AT (Q011F12831H : AR
180,000,00070) KB HARERITE X

RBEHR NEEBEUTAPREER

During the year, the Group obtained new unsecured short-term
bank loans in the amount of RMB142,000,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB270,500,000), unsecured long-term bank loans in the amount of
RMB663,000,000 (31 December 2011: RMB820,000,000) and secured
long-term bank loans in the amount of nil (31 December 2011:
RMB180,000,000).

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following

e undrawn borrowing facilities:
201246 2014F
AR¥T ARETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
1 EREIHR Expiring within one year 4,483,220 3,083,000
A8 1 2 HA Expiring beyond one year 850,000 870,540
5,333,220 3,953,540
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28. IEZEW A 28. Deferred income
BRI AFE B BT S 5 - e R - Deferred income represents government grants received in respect
REEFRZEBNAMIRE P AZERBEH of property, plant and equipment, costs incurred by the Group in
SEANEialz o relation to development activities and the prepaid lease payments

for existing office and plant.

FRREERARIEBAT - Movements of deferred income during the year are as follows:
201246 2014
ARBT R ARETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
M1 A1H At 1 January 175,244 184,568
NE Additions 40,881 4,490
EETER Release to profit or loss (8,256) (13,814)
R12H31H At 31 December 207,869 175,244
RIREFTERM DT T - Analysed for reporting purposes as:
20125 20114F
AR¥T AREBFT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
RNERER 7> Current portion 8,256 7,215
FEBNERER 5 Non-current portion 199,613 168,029
207,869 175,244
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29. IR 29. Share capital

RHEAR ;&N
T ARETTT
Number of shares Share capital
‘000 RMB'000
FiR0IBTTH R Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
JETE Authorised:
2011 K%20124F1 A1H At 1 January 2011 and 2012 and
LAK20124E12H31H 31 December 2012 4,000,000 382,200
BEITRERE Issued and fully paid:
R201141 A18 At 1 January 2011 2,099,450 199,356
TR (FYsE) Exercise of share options (Note) 21,102 1,755
720114 %20124F12 318 At31 December 2011 and 2012 2,120,552 201,111

30.

s © REZE201145E12A318 IEFE + 921,102,000/ 8
PR AETE 7T R R T 3577 4921,102,000/% A% - &
SRS RIEF RN A ARE37,8980007 + A
R #&1,755,0007T M A & #536,143,00070 5 5l A BR 7|
VERRZAR KRR A7 352 18 o

A AD 32 BYRRIE

RNABE R AR ERERER 8 R ERE
& ([5F311) TR E 200711 A16H &
BRURERMERD EHEZEMNAREE
EREERES - BIBFTE - ARAESRE
AR&GEREER (BREAAAKRENBAF
WEZERES) BEBREURERQFR

{/\ ®

R2012F 2011128318 » HRXAREE
AIEBRRAERT B TR E IR 1 R s AR T{F B i
BEEESS K AR AD o

201296124318 © BREFTE THE &
bR e ARITEEREMS RERDEE &
145,600,0008% (20114128318 : 147,800,000
fg) - EERAARE BB EITRDAI6.87%
(2011412H318 : 697%) °

140 BEZLETOCIEE BELES

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2011, approximately 21,102,000 share
options were exercised and as a result approximately 21,102,000 ordinary
shares were issued. Net proceeds of approximately RMB37,898,000 were raised,
of which RMB1,755,000 and RMB36,143,000 was recorded as share capital and
share premium respectively.

30. Share-based payments

The Company's Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme (the “Schemes”) were adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 16 November 2007 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees. Under the Schemes,
the board of directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
employees, including directors and employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, none of share in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

At 31 December 2012, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme was 145,600,000 (31 December 2011:
147,800,000), representing 6.87% (31 December 2011: 6.97%) of the
shares of the Company in issue at that date.
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30. U A FIE (&) 30. Share-based payments (Continued)

FERENIEEERIFIRNT

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

RIEEHBH
MR A Rl & B B 1TEHR THEE WBWLAYE
Fair value
Date of Exercise at grant
Option type grant Vesting period Exercise period price date
BHRAMBERBRESE
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:
RTIESHNERE
Options to directors
fEARREA 16/11/2007  16/11/2007Z10/12/2010 10/12/2010210/12/2011 2167870 075678 7T
Option A 16/11/2007  16/11/2007 to 10/12/2010  10/12/2010t0 10/12/2011 HK$2.16  HKS$0.756
RFHMES M IERRE
Options to other employees
fERRHER 16/11/2007  16/11/2007210/12/2010 10/12/2010&10/12/2011 216870 0687787
Option B 16/11/2007  16/11/2007 to 10/12/2010  10/12/2010 to 10/12/2011 HK$2.16  HK$0.687
B fESTEl
Share Option Scheme:
RFESHNERE
Options to directors
B EC 01/06/2011  01/06/2011&01/06/2012 01/06/2012201/06/2016 813870 3.0677857T
Option C 01/06/2011  01/06/2011 to 01/06/2012  01/06/2012 to 01/06/2016 HKS$8.13  HK$3.067
fERR#ED 01/06/2011  01/06/2011201/06/2013 01/06/2013201/06/2016 813870  3201787T
Option D 01/06/2011  01/06/2011 to 01/06/2013  01/06/2013 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13  HK$3.201
idibgds 01/06/2011  01/06/2011201/06/2014 01/06/20142=01/06/2016 813870  331487T
Option E 01/06/2011  01/06/2011 to 01/06/2014  01/06/2014 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13  HK$3.314
BB IR 01/06/2011  01/06/201101/06/2015  01/06/2015%01/06/2016 813 34118TT
Option F 01/06/2011  01/06/2011 to 01/06/2015  01/06/2015 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13  HK$3411
RFHMESHIBRE
Options to other employees
fEAR#EG 01/06/2011  01/06/2011Z01/06/2012 01/06/2012201/06/2016 813 3.06787T
Option G 01/06/2011  01/06/2011 to 01/06/2012  01/06/2012 to 01/06/2016 HKS$8.13  HK$3.067
HE AR AEH 01/06/2011  01/06/2011&01/06/2013 01/06/2013201/06/2016 813870  3201787T
Option H 01/06/2011  01/06/2011 to 01/06/2013  01/06/2013 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13  HK$3.201
tibged 01/06/2011  01/06/2011Z01/06/2014 01/06/2014201/06/2016 8138 331487T
Option | 01/06/2011  01/06/2011 to 01/06/2014  01/06/2014 to 01/06/2016 HK$8.13  HK$3.314
s i) 01/06/2011  01/06/2011201/06/2015 01/06/2015%01/06/2016 813 341187T
Option J 01/06/2011  01/06/2011 to 01/06/2015  01/06/2015 to 01/06/2016 HKS$8.13  HK$3411
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30. AR X ATHIFE (8)

LATRBIRBEEEZ2012F128318 IEFEEH

30. Share-based payments (Continued)

The following table discloses the movement of the share options

RN E) during the year ended 31 December 2012:
201245 20125
181H 12H31H8
e RATE [SFs:L 217 [EF S e ARATE
T T T T T
Outstanding Outstanding
BRrEEs Option type at 1.1.2012 Granted Exercised Forfeited at31.12.2012
000 000 000 000 000
RS HEC Option C 8,500 - - - 8,500
BER%HED Option D 8,500 - - - 8,500
iy g Option E 8,500 - - - 8,500
irtibends Option F 8,500 - - - 8,500
IR G Option G 28,450 - - (550) 27,900
BE RS FEH Option H 28,450 - - (550) 27,900
itibged Option | 28,450 - - (550) 27,900
tibed Option J 28,450 - - (550) 27,900
147,800 - - (2,200) 145,600

20125 4RIFA[1T{#  Exercisable at the end

of the year 2012 36,400
IHEFIITEE Weighted average 8.13/ 8T 8.13/87T
exercise price HK$8.13 HK$8.13

Q) #=xm8m07 | —e-=554
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5 + = .
30. U A FIE (&) 30. Share-based payments (Continued)
LARFI R EEHZ2011F128318B LFEX The following table discloses the movement of the share options
RN E) during the year ended 31 December 2011:
720114 20114
1TH1H 12H31H
HARITE B B2ATE BLRR W ARITE
TR TR T TR &
Outstanding Outstanding
BN tERE R Option type at1.1.2011 Granted Exercised Forfeited  at31.12.2011
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
fERRREA Option A 11,116 = 11,116 = -
AE M HEB Option B 9,986 - 9,986 - -
PR EC Option C - 8,500 - - 8,500
FBAHED Option D - 8,500 - - 8,500
B Er Option E = 8,500 = = 8,500
B A A Option F = 8,500 = = 8,500
FBREG Option G - 29,000 - (550) 28,450
BN Option H - 29,000 - (550) 28,450
itiberd Option | = 29,000 = (550) 28450
B i) Option J - 29,000 - (550) 28450
21,102 150,000 21,102 (2,200) 147,800
2011 EF4RBFATTT{E  Exercisable at the end of
the year 2011 -
INMEFHEITEE  Weighted average 8.1387T 8.13787C
exercise price HK$8.13 HK$8.13
B BE - EETR2011F6 A1 AF A The estimated fair values of the options granted on 1 June 2011 at the
A N B A A AR H405,174,0007T © % date of grant was approximately RMB405,174,000. These fair values
NFEAE D — &FRHT R EE B R were calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
FTHE -
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30. AR X ATHIFE (8)

B ANREBURIAT

(B
1T1E(E
CRE
CRRSEIES
BREx
g ) =

BETRB R IRIEA R BB ESFRE RS
BE - RAMANG FHEEREEEE
REME  TAIEEERE -

TEEEEITHE -
H EZ2012F 128318 I &E E

JT) °

31. EXREIE

1.00%%1.49%

30.

Share-based payments (Continued)

The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price HK$8.13
Exercise price HK$8.13
Expected life 3.5-5 years
Expected volatility 64.65%
Dividend yield 3.68%

Risk-free interest rate 1.009%-1.49%
Expected volatility was determined by using the annualized
historical stock price volatility of the Company. The expected life
used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions

C AREE R
ARARERENEREREZASIARE
143,047,0007C (20114F : A R #116,760,000

and behavioural considerations.

options granted by the Company.

31. Capital commitments

The Group recognised the expense of RMB143,047,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB116,760,000) in relation to share

R20129F12A318 - AEEHAKERENER At 31 December 2012, the Group had outstanding capital
HGERT commitments as follows:
20124 201148
ARBT T AREETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERANEEYE « HES R RIER  Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of
BALH - BEI4MBERFEAL property, plant and equipment contracted
A IR NS for but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 54,939 38,552
BRWERTIRENEARS  Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition
- DEIAERELASBF  of equity investments contracted for but
SRR N not provided in the consolidated financial
statements 37,713 75611
BREELRER®R ZEEZYEN Capital expenditure in respect of properties
BARSH - BETAMBARTES  under development for sale contracted for
B HRR N but not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 201,087 -
BB EREENEANSY  Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition
it BETABERELSZABA  ofintangible assets contracted for but
R A not provided in the consolidated financial
statements - 78,000
293,739 192,163

14« BEZLETOCIEE BELES
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32. HHEAIE 32. Lease commitments
AEBERAEABEA The Group as lessee
2012%F 201148
ARET ARETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
FRENKEEHERE Minimum lease payments paid under
MK - operating leases during the year:
)3 Premises 437 206
THE T Leasehold land 6,740 6,395
7,177 7,191
REEBER - AEERBEAS I HEEL 27 At the end of the reporting date, the Group had commitments for
EREHRRERASMNRZ  EREE RN future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
T ¢ leases which fall due as follows:
2012%F 201148
ARETR ARETTT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
TR Within one year 6,330 6,190
E2FZEFESF (BEEERME) In the second to fifth years inclusive 24,633 23,666
HRiBSF Over five years 71,991 74,935
102,954 104,791
AR SN IR EE G A S T T E R Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
e o AL T REA20% - for certain land. Leases are negotiated for an average term of 20

years.
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33. B ARIER 33. Liquidation of a subsidiary
M2010F128318 « AEBFENBARE As at 31 December 2010, the Group held a 60% interest in a subsidiary,
RREEMEERAT ([ERRE]) 60%HE Guangdong Dongyue Fluorine Chemicals Co, Ltd. (‘Guangdong
o REE201NENRANBIEFE  ERE Dongyue”). During the year ended 31 December 2011, Guangdong
EHEITEENEE - WHR20115F3 14 B ARAS Dongyue was placed into voluntary liquidation and dissolved on 14

March 2011.
R R E AR R B A 20114124318 Guangdong Dongyue did not contribute significantly to the Group's
EFEZHERENEEERENEANT cash flows or operation results during the year ended 31 December
Z- 2011.

34. BEALRS 34. Related party transactions
BREFEMBmEREAINEIN  FR - AEEY Other than set out in the consolidated financial statements, the
ETNIEEALRS Group entered into the following related party transactions during

the year:
(@) BEEREMHE (@) Purchase of raw materials
2012 20114F
ARBTR AREBFT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEPENR AR R A 2 Non-controlling interests 5,830 8,294
(b) TEEE ASFM (b) Compensation of key management personnel

FRN EFREMEZERASHB The remuneration of directors and other members of key

G UNNE management during the year was as follows:
2012%F 20114F
ARET AREBFT
2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB'000
SE-==E = Short-term employee benefits 38,139 41,682
RRET Post-employment benefits 20 15

RTESE - T21THAER  Share options granted to directors,
REEEBAE chief executive and key

B e i e management personnel 48,335 38,868
86,494 80,565

) =rm5m07 | —2-—==p
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35. ¥RERS 35. Non-cash transaction
REZE2011F12A31BIEFE - AEE AR During the year ended 31 December 2011, the property, plant and
#) A R %38,389,0007T B ¥ 35 - 28 R & equipment of the Group of approximately RMB38,389,000 was
EEE%‘H&HXHX%TH/ & WEKEETEE contributed by the non-controlling interests that formed part of
M — &b their capital contribution.

36. EARBEFEE 36. Retirement benefits plans
RNEEEREAEES T B S B 75 BT & The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
ENEZRARENEKE - ZF%’%@/AF_J state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the

STEIMERETE O GRHMEKATE respective local governments in the PRC. The Group is required to
EREMREINNER - A&E E’\Jﬂ’%—ﬁﬁ'ﬁ% contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to
R EABIERIEEMHR - fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to

these schemes is to make the specified contributions.

37. X R FIME R RIFE 37. Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company
Bl AE
/g8 FisBR 3 BT/ ARRFEHA LA KRR
Lol N e/ Ex <Vl HREERE EE ol RERLH  TEXK
2012 01MF  2012F  2011F  2012F  01E
7 % % % % % %
Place/country of Paid up issued/
incorporation registered Proportion ownership interest Proportion of voting
orregistration/  Class of ordinary share held by the Company power held by
Name of subsidiary operations share held capital Directly Indirectly the Company  Principal activities
2012 201 2012 2011 2012 201
‘000 % % % % % %
RERAF i EMEA AR¥641360  100.00 10000 - - 10000 10000 HERHERDALE
Dongyue Polymers PRC Registered RMB641,360 Manufacture and sale of
capital polytetrafluoro-ethylene
RELT i EMER AR340000 - ~ 10000 10000 10000 10000 HERHERLH
Dongyue Chemicals PRC Registered RMB340,000 Manufacture and sale of
capital refrigerant
RERFHZARAR i EMER AR¥70000 - - 6000 6000 6000 6000 AERHEH
Dongying Dongyue Salt PRC Registered RMB70,000 Production and sales of
Co. Ltd. capital salt
RERERMCIBRAR & &R ARH10000 2500 2500 7500 7500 10000 10000 AERBEERE
Dongying Dongyue Precision  PRC Registered RMB10,000 Production and sales of
Chemicals Co, Ltd. capital bromine
LRREREMHARAR & EMER ARB40000 6979 6979 1343 1343 8322 830 HERHERREALH
Shandong Dongyue Fluo- PRC Registered RMB400,000 Manufacture and sa\es of
Silicon Materials Co, Ltd. capital methane chloride
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37. RATME A RFE (F) 37. Particulars of subsidiaries of the Company
(Continued)
Bl
B/ BE s BRfT /i NG ElIEer ] NG iES
W2 B & 78 e/ Ex K5l HREERE EE ik FEIHA  IEEH
2012 01MF  2012F  2011F  2012F  0NEF
T % % % % % %
Place/country of Paid up issued/
incorporation registered Proportion ownership interest Proportion of voting
orregistration/  Class of ordinary share held by the Company power held by
Name of subsidiary operations share held capital Directly Indirectly the Company  Principal activities
2012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011
‘000 % % % % % %
HEREARERAA H AR ARH200,000 - - 10000 10000 10000 10000 SUERHEREMEGER
Zibo Dongyue Lvyuan Co, Ltd.  PRC Registered RMB200,000 Manufacture and sale of
capital liquid chlorine and alkali
WRREABERH thEl EMER ARM650000 8400 8400 1600 1600 10000 10000 EUERHEFHEEE
BRAHE PRC Registered RMB650,000 Manufacture and sale of
Shandong Dongyue capital organosilicon material
Organosilicon Material
Co, Ltd.
REHRESBALT E EMER ARE70000 - - 5100 5100 5100 5100 HERHEEKEALE
BRAR PRC Registered (2014 : Manufacture and sale of
Inner Mongolia Dongyue Peak capital ARE50000) anhydrous fluoride
Fluorine Chemicals Co, Ltd. RMB70,000
(2011: RMB50,000)
HREESBERRAR i &R ARE2000 - - 8000 8000 8000 8000 BUERHELR
Chifeng HuaSheng Mining PRC Registered RMB2,000 Manufacture and sale of
Co, Ltd. capital fluorite
REEREANHERAR H EMER ARH50000 - - 10000 10000 10000 10000 RERHEHR
Inner Mongolia Dongyue PRC Registered RMB50,000 Manufacture and sale of
Fluorine Chemicals Co,, Ltd. capital fluorite
IERRE IO B E i EMER ARE115,700 - - 5100 5100 5100 5100 BERHEERE
BBAR PRC Registered RMB115,700 Manufacture and sale of
Shandong Dongyue Wenhe capital silicone rubber
Fluorine Chemicals Co,, Ltd.
WRREMABXERAR o EMER AR #8000 - - 10000 10000 10000 10000 ¥ERH
Shandong Dongyue Union PRC Registered (20115 : Property development
Property Co, Ltd. capital AEH20,000)
RMB80,000
(2011: RMB20,000)
EERERREFBRAF & EMER AR#5000 - - 100,00 - 10000 - HECTER
Huantai Dongyue PRC Registered RMBS5,000 Sale of chemical products
International Trade Co,, Ltd. capital
REL - MBRRMERTEAERKES None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
Fa P EfT A RS BB 2 - the year. All the PRC subsidiaries are domestic enterprises.
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38. XA R A BARR KB E 38. Summarised statement of financial position
of the Company

20124 20114F

AR¥ET T AREFIT

2012 2011

RMB’000 RMB'000

e N Property, plant and equipment 2 4
R B R R E Investments in subsidiaries 1,523,873 1,523,873
AN ERE Available-for-sale investments 89,401 51,729
FEUR BT R 5B Amounts due from subsidiaries - 49,675
RITHEHREIRS Bank balances and cash 23,102 7,895
HEMmehEE Other current assets 193 191
HEMmBaE Other current liabilities (350) (302)
1,636,221 1,633,065

PR Share capital 201,111 201,111
R (PeE) Reserves (Note) 1,435,110 1,431,954
1,636,221 1,633,065
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38. AARMBEAMRRATRME (F)

38.

Summarised statement of financial position
of the Company (Continued)

B 5E Note:
Gtz Movement in the reserves:
REE BRERE IR REEF At
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARET:T
Share
Share option Capital Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
20114F1 A1 B #58k Balance at 1 January 2011 1,202,695 24,746 200,344 (38,538) 1,389,247
FREREERA LS Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 125,501 125,501
1TEIB AR M TR AR (D Shares issued upon exercise of
share options 36,143 (13,728) - 13,728 36,143
EfIRE Dividends paid - - - (235,697) (235,697)
TERRIESEE 2 ARG Recognition of equity-settled shared-

SR based payments - 116,760 - - 116,760
20114F12 A31 B#&S#R Balance at 31 December 2011 1,238,838 127,778 200,344 135,006 1,431,954
F A F R 2R A BT Profit and total comprehensive

income for the year - - - 550,985 550,985
BRI Dividends paid = = = (690,876) (690,876)
TERRIEEE 2 AR Recognition of equity-settled shared-

S HFRIA based payments - 143,047 = = 143,047

20126F12 A31 B#AER Balance at 31 December 2012 1,238,838 270,825 200,344 (274,897) 1,435,110
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Event after the reporting date

Subsequent to 31 December 2012, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an agreement with independent parties to
acquire the entire registered capital in Shandong Huaxia Shenzhou
New Materials Company Limited (“Huaxia Shenzhou”) for an
aggregate cash consideration of RMB590 million (the “Acquisition”).

Huaxia Shenzhou is principally engaged in the business of the
production and sale of a variety of downstream fluoropolymer fine
chemicals, which is related to the reporting and operating segment
of “Polymers” of the Group.
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39. Event after the reporting date (Continued)

Details are set out in the Company’s announcement on 25 January
2013. The Acquisition was completed in February 2013 and the
acquisition cost of RMB590 million was paid in cash. After the
Acquisition, Huaxia Shenzhou became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. The valuation of identified assets acquired and
liabilities assumed is still under process as of the date of the

consolidated financial statements.

REESHEANREEZEERE (1R
BREEEARERAUNGR)  NKER
Hl ZEEHANEERAEDT

According to Huaxia Shenzhou's unaudited management accounts
prepared under the PRC generally accepted accounting principles,
as at the date of the Acquisition, Huaxia Shenzhou's assets and
liabilities are as followv:

AREFIT
RMB'000
EEFE Net assets:
YIZE - s R Property, plant and equipment 407,175
mEE Intangible assets 4236
FE Inventories 79,671
JE UK AR 3k K% EL A R U SR IE Trade and other receivables 151,386
RIT#HERR MR E Bank balances and cash 96,206
FEAS BR 3 N E b FE A< SR IE Trade and other payables (152,632)
= Borrowings (122,650)
EMRBaE Other current liabilities (6,355)
EM3EmeaE Other non-current liabilities (42,349)
414,688

MEEAE (BREEMANERN EFH

The initial amount of identified assets (including patents, know-

& BT REE (1)) RaBEYBEsE
BREREEERLETE - BEREARE
590,000,0007C EEFTEE B s Bl & EE M EB 1 A
FiAEAEESE MNEEERRATE
HEERERE (ER) -

how, technologies and trademarks of Huaxia Shenzhou, if any)
and liabilities will be finalized upon completion of the valuation.
Any difference between the cash consideration of RMB590 million
and aggregate amount of identified assets acquired and liabilities
assumed of Huaxia Shenzhou will be recognised as goodwill or
bargain purchase gain as appropriate.

Dongyue Group Limited | Annual Report 2012 @
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EERES Assets and liabilities
®12831H
As at 31 December
20084 20095 20105 20114 20125
ARETTE ARETRE AREBETT ARBTT AR%ETxR
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
BEHR Total Assets 5,594,937 5,884,274 6,898,115 9,128,932 8,777,989
BERE Total Liabilities (3,431,080) (3,639,001) (4,031,527) (4,053,636)  (3,551,131)
2,163,857 2245273 2,866,588 5,075,296 5,226,858
KRATEEAELER  Equity attributable to
Owners of the Company 1,898,906 2,014,646 2,674,266 4,783,088 4,948,315
IR IR R Non-controlling interests 264,951 230,627 192,322 292,208 278,543
2,163,857 2245273 2,866,588 5,075,296 5,226,858
Ry 1 P2 E H 1
B G e 4 Financial results
BZE12831BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2008%F 2009%F 2010 20114F 20125
AREFT ARBTRE ARETT ARBTT AR®Tx
(BT3E) (PBI=E) (BT3E)
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
(Note) (Note) (Note)
g Revenue 3,962,159 3,544,447 5,964,322 10,165,200 7,050,822
SHERAR Cost of sales (3,286,355) (3,024,006) (4,320,670) (6,126913)  (5,367,436)
EF Gross profit 675,804 520441 1,643,652 4,038,287 1,683,386
HA Other income 46,188 32,347 35,859 66,058 117,817
DI REERY Distribution and selling expenses (162,946) (154,742) (171,279) (211,849) (209,912)
THRX Administrative expenses (236,452) (148,635) (318,075) (590,984) (367,203)
R RFEZERS Research and development
expenses (11,471) (5,807) (11,517) (9,603) (33,764)
BEMKA Finance costs (179,959) (113,447) (113,923) (150,277) (136,076)
FiiE—FES AT Share of result of an associate 425 1016 1192 (201) 324
BRELADE R Profit before tax 131,589 131,173 1,065,909 3,141,431 1,054,572
FriERiEe /(F%) Income tax credit/(expense) 6,789 22,796 (284,412) (880,550) (347,509)
FEERAR Profit and total comprehensive
2HEBALE income for the year 138,378 153,969 781,497 2,260,381 707,063
T 5% 75 B f a5 Profit and total comprehensive
REEB AL income attributable to:
NRRHER A Owners of the Company 120,747 165,303 733,869 2,189,861 713,056
el Non-controlling interests 17,631 (11,334) 47628 71,020 (5,993)
138,378 153,969 781,497 2,260,381 707,063

i ETHRBTEERAM  WFAATELAS R NS

) o

Q) #=xmamnn | —e-=5r4

Note:
presentation format.

Certain figures have been reclassified to conform to the change in the current year's
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Corporate Information

Registered office

Offshore Incorporations (Cayman) Ltd.
Scotia Centre

4th Floor, PO. Box 2804

George Town

Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands

Head office and principal place of business in the PRC

Dongyue International Fluoro
Silicone Material Industry Park
Zibo City

Shandong Province the PRC

Principal place of business in Hong Kong

Flat 02, 15th Floor, AXA Centre
151 Gloucester Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

Website address

www.dongyuechem.com

Directors

Executive directors

Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. FU Kwan

Mr. LIU Chuangi (President)

Mr. CUI Tongzheng (Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. YAN Jianhua

Mr. ZHANG Jian

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen
Mr. LIU Yi
Mr. YUE Run Dong
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Corporate Information

AEME Company secretary

REF %L Mr. NG Kwok Choi

RERE Authorized representatives

HEEE Mr. FU Kwan

RET L Mr. NG Kwok Choi

EREES Audit committee

TRENE (£/F) Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen (Chairman)

Gl Mr. LIU i

ERREE Mr. YUE Run Dong

FMEES Remuneration committee

BRE () Mr. LIU Yi (Chairman)

TRBxE Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen

RERTE Mr. ZHANG Jianhong

REZES Nomination committee

SRERSTE (F/E) Mr. ZHANG Jianhong (Chairman)

TRERAE Mr. TING Leung Huel, Stephen

Gl Mr. LIU i

RPBFELER Principal share registrar and transfer office

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House 4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town 24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110 Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands Cayman Islands

BERERODBFERLRIRE Hong Kong branch sh i d f

=rCJJ ong Kong branch share reglstrar and transfer

office

PERSFERARAT Tricor Investor Services Limited

B 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre

SRARBR285 28 Queen’s Road East

BEEA 261 Hong Kong
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Corporate Information

Principal bankers

China Construction Bank Corporation
Huantai Branch

134 Jianshe Road

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

7 Zhangbei Road

Zibo Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

48 Heng Huan Road
Zibo City, Huantai
Shandong Province, PRC

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Huantai Branch

101 Zhongxin Road

Suo Zhen

Zibo City, Huantai

Shandong Province, PRC

Bank of Communications Company Limited
Zibo Branch

100 Jin Jing Road

Zhang Dian Qu

Zibo

Shandong Province, PRC
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Investor relations consultant

A-World Consulting Limited
Unit 2401-2402, 24th Floor
Tower 2 Admiralty Centre

18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

External legal advisor

Norton Rose Hong Kong

Stock code

189
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Dongyue International Fluoro Silicone Material Industry Park

ZE &% Tel: (0086) 533 8510072
{5 & Fax: (0086) 533 8513000
#81k Website: http://www.dongyuechem.com
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